
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 

56 CHURCH STREET 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

 
MARCH 10, 2014 ─ 7:00 P.M. 

___________ 
 

1. Tom Vigneulee, candidate for U. S. Congress, Sixth District, to address the Mayor and members of the City 
Council. 
 

2. Approval of the minutes of the February 24, 2014 regular meeting of the City Council. 
 

3. Consideration:  Resolution reappointing Pete Johnson as municipal court judge (term of office to end March 
March 13, 2016). 
 

4. Consideration:  Resolution reappointing Turner Williams as municipal court judge (term of office to end 
March March 1, 2016). 
 

5. Consideration:  Resolution declaring a 2009 Crown Victoria surplus and authorizing its disposal (totaled in the 
recent winter storm) in consideration of $6,917.06 to be paid by Progressive Insurance. 
 

6. Consideration:  Resolution awarding the bid for street striping. 
 

7. Consideration:  Resolution awarding the bid for [utility] street cut patches. 
 

8. Consideration:  Resolution authorizing the execution of a professional services agreement between the City 
and Sain Associates for additional construction, engineering, and inspection services with respect to the Safe 
Routes to Schools sidewalk construction projects. 
 

9. Consideration:  Resolution authorizing the execution of a lease agreement between the City and Mountain 
Brook Board of Education with respect to the use of the Board’s athletic fields for community recreational and 
athletic events. 
 

10. Public hearing to consider the adoption of an ordinance amending the zoning code with respect to publication 
requirements for public hearings. 
 

11. Announcement:  The next regular meeting of the City Council will be March 24, 2014, at 7 p.m. in the Council 
Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

 
12. Other business. 

 
13. Comments from residents. 

 
14. Adjourn. 

 
        
  



Minute Book 86 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

FEBRUARY 24,2014 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, the 24th day of February, 2014. The Council President 
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Absent: Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and Acting City Clerk Joy 
Moman. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Alicia Bailey of Sain Associates discussed the Phase 9 sidewalk construction project contract for 
services to be voted on in the formal meeting (See Resolution No. 2014-019). 

2. Release and indemnification from Charles and Kelly Henon for the City's waiver of building Code 
requirements for property at 2709 Southwood Road - James Griffin. (Resolution No. 2014-020 was 
added to the formal agenda.) 

3. A presentation was given by Robert Jolly of Retail Specialists relative to the proposed new 
development for Crestline Village. 

4. Blair Peny of Gresham, Smith & Partners gave a presentation relative to their proposal submitted with 
respect to the Hollywood Boulevard sidewalk design. It was the consensus of the members of the City 
Council that this matter be tabled until more information is obtained. 

5. Nimrod Long of Nimrod Long & Associates discussed a conceptual drawing for the final Cahaba 
River Park plans (Appendix 1). 

6. Proposed Residential Building Code amendments - James Griffin and Jerry Weems. The members of 
the City Council announced that they will hold an informal [public] work session regarding this matter 
upon conclusion of the formal meeting (Appendix 2). 

Upon conclusion of the City Council's review of the other formal [7 p.m.] agenda issues, Council 
President Smith stated that this meeting is adjourned. 

Joy Moman, Acting City Clerk 



Minute Book 86 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

FEBRUARY 24,2014 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Hall 
Council Chamber (Room AIOS) at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 24th day of February, 2014. The Council 
President called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard 111 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Absent: Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Also present were City Attorney Whit Colvin, City Manager Sam Gaston, and Acting City Clerk Joy 
Moman. 

The City Council President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

Madeleine Odendahl and Samantha Kelly thanked the council for their support of the ongoing 
programs at the Museum of Art. 

2. PROCLAMATION 

Council President Smith read a proclamation (2014-015) proclaiming the week of March 3,2014 
through March 9,2014 as Arbor Week in the City of Mountain Brook (Exhibit 1). 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on the 
consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the February 10,2014 meeting of the City Council. 

2014-016 Reappoint Gina Thomas to Tree Commission to serve without Exhibit 2 
compensation, with the term of ofice to end November 22, 
20 16. 

2014-017 Reappoint Richard Goldstein to the MAX Transit Advisory Exhibit 3 
Committee, to serve without compensation, with the term of 
office to end February 22,20 16. 

2014-018 Accept the bid from Ingram Equipment Co., LLC for the Exhibit 4, 
purchase of a 16-foot platform skid and 15 foot (16 yard) dump Appendix 1 
bed both with hook lifts 

2014-019 Authorize the execution of a professional services agreement Exhibit 5, 
between the City and Sain Associates with respect to the Appendix 2 
Mountain Brook Sidewalks-Phase 9, CMAQ-PEI2( ) 
performance of field surveys and preparation of roadway plans. 

February 24,2014 



Minute Book 86 

2014020 Authorize the acceptance of a release and indemnification from Exhibit 6, 
Charles Keith Herron and Kelly Sims Herron with respect to the Appendix 3 
City's waiver of building code requirements for the property at 
2709 Southwood Road. 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes and resolutions were introduced by Council President Smith and 
their immediate adoption was moved by Council member Pritchard. The minutes and resolutions were then 
considered by the City Council. Council member Vogtle seconded the motion to adopt the foregoing minutes 
and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia Smith, Council President 
Amy G. Carter, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
William S. Pritchard I11 
Jesse S. Vogtle, Jr. 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said minutes and resolutions (no. 2014-016 through 
020), are adopted by a vote of 5-4. 

4. ANNOUNCEMENT REGARDING THE NEXT RIEGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, March 10,2014 at 7 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.mtnbrook.orp3 for more information. 

5. WORK SESSION 

There being no fhrther business to come before the City Council, President Smith announced that the 
council will now convene in a [public] work session to discuss a proposal to amend the City's Residential 
Building Code. President Smith also announced that the City Council will adjourn upon concIusion of the 
work session. 

Joy Moman, Acting City Clerk 

EXHIBIT 1 

ARBOR WEEK PROCLAMATION 

Whereas, in 1872, J. Sterling Morton proposed to the Nebraska Board of 
Agriculture that a special day be set aside for the planting of trees, and 

Whereas, this holiday, called Arbor Day, was first observed with the planting of more than a million 
trees in Nebraska, and 

Whereas, Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the world, and 

Whereas, trees can reduce the erosion of our precious topsoil by wind and 
water, cut heating and cooling costs, moderate the temperature, clean the air, produce life-giving oxygen, and 
provide habitat for wildlife, and 

Whereas, trees are a renewable resource giving us paper, wood for our homes, fuel for our fires and 
countless other wood products, and 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-021 

BE IT IRESOLVED by die City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Turner 
Williams is hereby reappointed as a Municipal Court Judge of the City of Mountain Brook, wit11 the term 
to end March 1,20 16. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

-- 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 20 14. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certifL the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Councit of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Reappoint Turner Williams Municipal Court Judge 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-022 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Pete 
Johnson is hereby re-appointed as a Municipal Court Judge of the City of Mountain Brook, with the term 
to end March 13,201 6. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 201 4. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Reappoint Pete Johnson Municipal Court Judge 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-023 

WHIEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain items of personal property which 
are no longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1 1-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
as follows: It is hereby established and declared that the following property owned by the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus 
property: 

Item Description Notes 

1 2009 Ford Crown Victoria 
VIN 2FAHP7 1 V09X 123576 

Totaled in the January 28,20 I4 winter 
storm 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, ~fabama, 
that the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to sell said vehicle to Progressive insurance in 
consideration of $6,917.06 said consideration representing fair value of the [totaled] vehicle prior to the 
accident. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 201 4. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 201 4. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of tlie City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting. 

City Clerk 

2009 Crown Victoria Declared Surplus 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-024 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the execution of a supplement to a professional services agreement, as more fully 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto, between the City and Sain Associates (Resolution No. 2012-27 dated 
August 27, 2012) for additional construction, engineering, and inspection services with respect to the Safe 
Routes to Schools sidewalk construction projects (SRTS-SR09 (903 & 904)). 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certifj, the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Sain Associates SRTS-SR09 (903 & 904) CEI Agreement Supplement 



SAIN 
a s s o c i a t e s  
consulr~ng engrneers 

G s u r v e y o r s  

February 26,2014 

Mr. Sam Gaston 
City Manager 
City of Mountain Brook 
3928 Montclair Road, Suite 200 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 

SUBJECT: Project No. SRTSSROO (903 & 904) 
Safe Routes to School Mountain Brook Sidewalks, Jefferson County 
Supplement to Contract for CE&I Sewlces 

Dear Sam, 

Based on a current project-to-date budget review of the Safe Routes project we are in need of a 
supplement to the original contract agreement. An hourly supplement of $80,000 is hereby requested to 
cover budget overmns and additional services requested by the City. 

Contract Summarv 
Sain's original contract amount was approved at $1 16,716.48 in August 2012. 
From August 2012 to August 2013, Sain expended $21,999.39 of effort at the City's request to 
coordinate with the City and citizens over a section of the project that was ultimately removed 
from Ule project and conduct other coordination regarding the project in general. These services 
were outside the scope of work in the original contract because they were not connected with the 
actual construction. 
Removal of the contested section of project forced an automatic reduction in Sain's fee contract 
by $21,428.05. The reduction was mandated by ALDOT due to their directive of the initial CE&I 
original budget being capped at 15% of the construction cost. Therefore, since the construction 
cost was reduced, the CEBI maximum contract amount was also reduced. 
The revised total contract for CE&I services (covered services from September 2013 to February 
2014) is $73,289.04. 
Sain has averaged $20,000 in effort incurred per month on the Safe Routes project. The project 
has included extensive coordination with residents which has heavily influenced the amount of 
effort incurred. The current contract dollars will be expended at the end of February. 
A supplement of $20,000 per month is needed to cover CE81 services from March 2014 to July I ,  
2014 (total of $80,000.00) to complete the project per the contractor's current estimated 
construction schedule. The requested supplement is hourly with a maximum budget of 
$80,000.00 and is based upon the current completion date provided by the contractor. Per our 
contract terms, Sain only bills the Ci for the services rendered based upon the approved hourly 
rates and will not exceed the maximum budget for the project. 
With the supplement, the revised overall contract total will be $175,288.43. 

As stated above our CE81 services have typically incurred approximately $20,000 in effort per month. 
The effort associated with our services includes: 

45 hours per week (average) for full time inspection ($20.001hr base pay) 
16 Hours per week (average) for project management ($29.50/hr base pay) 
2 hours per week (average) for project civil engineer oversight ($43.00/hr base pay) 
$3500 (average) per month for geotechnical services for required concrete testing 

Celebrating 40 Years of Excellence in Engineering and Surveying 

Two Perimeter Park South, Suite 500 East - Birmingham, Alabama 35243 - p (205) 940-6420 - f (205) 940-6433 
www.sain.com 



Mr. Sam Gaston 
February 26,20 14 
Page 2 

Per our contract terms, all hours are multiplied by Sain's approved FAR audit rate (174.25%) and 
facilities cost of capital then the total invoice is adjusted for 10% profit. 

As of February 18', there was approximately $20,000 remaining in the current project budget which should 
cover CE&t services to the end of February. 

Services Outside of CE&l S w ~ e  
When the project was originally set to move forward, in August 2012, there was public displeasure 
regarding several portions of the project. Ultimately the City decided to remove a portion of the project 
along Dexter Ave. From August 201 2 until August 201 3, Sain incurred expenses for coordination (phone 
calls, emails, and meetings) with residents, ALDOT, the City, and the designer (Nimrod Long and 
Associates). To compensate Sain for these expenses, the City decided to keep Sain's CE&I contract 
open with the intent of supplementing the contract as needed. 

During the time period from August 201 2 until August 2013 and prior to commencement of construction 
Sain incurred approximately $22,000 in effort associated with the above-described project coordination. 

Modification of the Oriuinal Contract 
The original contract estimated the number of contract days as 130. When the Dexter Avenue portion of 
the project was removed and the plans were re-bid at a reduced cost of almost $200,000, the 130-day 
project schedule was not reduced. By not reducing the construction schedule, the contractor is allowed 
the same amount of time to do less work. ALDOT requires the original budget for CE&I to be capped at 
15% of the overall construction fee. Therefore, when the construction cost was reduced, ALDOT reduced 
Sain's fee by approximately $21,500. 

Construction Schedule Delavs 
The construction inspection work started in August 201 3. Based completely on 130 working days and 
without any delays, the construction end date was originally estimated to be around March 7Ih (including 
holidays). At the start of construction, Sain evaluated our contract of $73,289 and estimated the CE&I 
could possibly be completed within the remaining budget if no delays were experienced and property 
owner coordination was minimal. However, the project has experienced delays and coordination with 
residents has been extensive. 

The project has been delayed due to several factors. 
From the start of construction until February lSt there have been 25 working days not charged 
due to weather-related issues that have hindered Walker Patton's crews from working at all or 
working on "controlling items of work". 
There have been 13 other days not charged due to delays from issues such as the utility conflict 
on Canterbury Road with the irrigation lines and invisible dog fences, a broken water line on 
Canterbury Road, and Walker Patton's annual company vacation days. 
There is a large tree on the comer of Canterbury Road and Cambridge Road in conflict with the 
proposed sidewalk. Sain has coordinated this issue with the property owner, ALDOT, Walker 
Patton, the City, and Nimrod Long and Associates. Resolving this issue included research on 
alternative ADA compliant surfaces. At this time, the current proposal is to install brick pavers in 
this area, and we are awaiting pricing details from Walker-Patton. 
According to the approved design plans. there was one residence on Canterbury Road for which 
the property owner was allowed to install ADA compliant pavers across their driveway where the 
sidewalk crossed. However, this property owner deviated from the original plans and has 
installed a retaining wall and pavers that could possibly be considered nonADA compliant. This 
deviation has caused a variety of issues and has resulted in Sain attending five meetings and 
coordination with Walker-Patton, the City, ALDOT, Nimrod Long and Associates, and the property 
owner. 
All of the days not charged are in conformance with ALDOl's guidelines. Days charged are 
subject to a claim by the contractor if he is not in agreement. Walker Patton has already 
expressed disagreement with several days that have been charged and Sain is currently working 

SAlN 
associates 



Mr. Sam Gaston 
February 26,2014 
Page 3 

with the contractor and ALDOT in regards to the time charges. 
According to ALDOT's guidelines, full time inspection is required whenever the contractor is 
working on pay item work. So even though days were not charged against the construction 
contract, Sain has maintained full time inspection whenever the contractor has been on site in 
accordance with ALDOT requirements. 
Based on the previously described delays there were 63 working days remaining as of Febru~ry 
lSt. If no delays were experienced, the estimated end of construction date would be April 30 
with project closeout being completed by May 30~ .  However, an expectation of no delays is 
unrealistic. According to Walker Patton's latest schedule, he anticipates completing construction 
on June 1,2014. Project closeout is estimated to take a month and is expected to be complete 
around July 1,2014. 

Probertv Owner Coordination 
The pro~ertv owner coordination on this proiect has been extensive. The maioritY of the work that has 
been p&orhed has been on the ~ountain Brook Elementary sites (canterbury ~ o a d ,  Overhill Road, and 
Watkins Road.) Some work has been performed near Crestline Elementary on Vine Street. Since 
August 2013, Sain estimates we have coordinated with at least 26 property owners, most of which have 
involved multiple phone calls, emails, and meetings. We expect the property owner coordination to 
continue as the construction progresses. 

As described above, our request for supplemental funds is based upon three major items: 
Coordination services provided outside the scope of work and at the request of the City 
Construction schedule delays outside of our control, and 
Extensive property owner coordination above and beyond the norm. 

The requested supplement is an hourly budget with a maximum budget of $80,000.00. We sincerely 
appreciate the City's consideration of this request. If you have any questions or require additional 
information, please do not hesitate to call. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Lynch, P.E. 
AL Registration # 30861 

~a%es A. Meads, P.E. 
PresidentlCEO 
Aabama Reg. #I7294 

SAlN 
associates  



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-025 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the bid 
presented by Highway Management Systems, Inc., in the amount of $354,500 (based on estimated 
quantities) for the street striping as specified in the invitation to bid is hereby accepted; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the Mayor or City Manager are hereby authorized and directed to execute a 13-year] agreement for said 
street striping services. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 20 14. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certiw 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain 
Brook at its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Award the Street Striping Bid 



Cltyd M W n  Brook Mail - Street Striping and Utility Cut Bids 

Steve Boone cbaone%&mtnbrook.org> 

Street Striping and Utility Cut Bids 
r nes s age 

Rona Id Vaughn cmughnr@rntnbrook.org~ Fri, Feb 28,2014 at 8:49 AM 
To: Sam Gaston <gastons@mtnbrook.aq>, Stew Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org> 
Cc: Donis Kenny <kennyd@mtnbrook.org*, Jackie McClendon <rncclendonj@mtnbrook.org>, Michael Rollo 
<rollm@mtnbrook.org> 

After reviewing both of the subject bids I would recommend that we go with the low bidder on each. For the street 
striping it will be and on the utility cuts Smith Pawng. Both of these bids meet or exceed bid 

' 

specibcations. 

Doris has all of the bid packages in her office. 

Thanks 

Ronnie Vaughn 
Public Works Dimctor 
City of Mountain Brook AL 
3579 East Street 
Birmingham , Alabama 35243 
205.802.3865 Ofiiee 
205.967.2631 Fax 
waughnr@rntnbrook.org 





CONTRACT 

This contract is entered into, as of the day of 
March , 2014, by City of Mountain Brook, an Alabama 
municipal corporation, ("City") whose address i~ 56 Church Street, 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 (P. 0 .  Box 130009, Mountain Brook, 
Alabama 35213-0009) , and Highway Management Systems, Inc.,  1110 Hwy 31, ~ a l e r a ,  AL 35040. 

City and Contractor agree as follows: 

1. Description of Work. The work to be done under this 
contract shall consist of repairing utility cuts in various locatians 
within the City of Mountain Brook. 

2 .  - Term. This contract shall remain in effect for a period of 
three (3) years from the date of this contract, as provided above, and 
shall be subject to cancellation as provided hereinafter. 

3. Commencement Date. The date of commencement of the Work 
shall be within three weeks of Contractor's receipt from City of a 
written or verbal notice to commence the Work. The time for 
completion shall be measured from the date upon which the Work is 
commenced, but not later than forty-eight (48 )  hours after 
Contractor's receipt of such notice. 

4 .  Completion Date. The Work shall be completed within a 
reasonable time, based upon the circumstances of the Project, but in 
no event later than 2 weeks from the Commencement Date ("Completion 
Date"). If Contractor is unable to complete the Work by the 
Completion Date because of matters beyond its control, including 
strikes, shortages of material and governmental preemption in 
co~ection with a national emergency, the time for completion of the 
Work shall be extended by the length of time equal to the duration of 
any such matters. 

5 .  Contract Sum. The City shall pay Contractor the sum of $3s4,roo.oo 
(three hundred f i f ty - four  thousand and no/100 dol lars)  ( ''Contract Sumn ) . 

6. Payments to Contractor, Payments shall be made to 
Contractor within ten (10) 
days after the satisfactory completion of the Work in accordance with 
this Contract and upon receipt by the City of invoices requesting such 
payment. Payments due and unpaid under this contract shall bear 
interest, at the rate of eight per cent (8%) per annum, from the date 
payment is due until the date payment is made. 

7. Chanse Orders and Amendment of the Contract. This contract 
may not be amended, nor may the Work or the scope of the Work be 

Project Coordinator: Jacky MeClmdon (205) 802-3875 



changed, except in accordance with the terms of a written change order 
signed by City and Contractor. No change order shall cause a 
modification in the Contract Sum or the time for the completion of the 
Work unless the change order specifically provides for such 
modification. 

8. Insurance. During the term of this contract, Contractor 
shall maintain in effect the following Insurance, in at least the 
following amounts. Contractor shall furnish City certificates of 
insurance showing that such insurance ie in full force and effect and 
that: such insurance may not be cancelled without at least: thirty (30) 
days' prior written notice to City. 

Insurance Amount 
workers' compensation statutory 
general liability $1,000,000 
auto liability $1,000,000 

a .  

9. Miscellaneous: 
a. Contractor shall obtainrand pay for all necessary licenses, 
permits and fees required to perform the services and Work which 
Contractor is obligated to perform under this contract. 

b, Upon default under this contract by' City, City shall become 
liable for Contractor's costs of  collecting any amount due and 
owing by City to Contractor as of the date of default, .including 
reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by Contractor. Interest 
.shall accrue from the date of default at the rate of eight per 
cent (8%) per a m .  Should City default while the Work is in 
progress and before final completion of the Work, Contractor, at 
its sole option, may elect to cease performance of the Work. If 
City fails to cure the default within ten (10) days after 
Contractor gives notice of the same, Contractor may declare this 
contract terminated. If Contractor does not perform the Work in 

* ' *  a satisfactory manner, or in the event of any other default by 
Contractor under this contract, City may terminate this contract 
and/or may have the Work completed by another contractor or 
contractors during the entire, unexpired term of this Contract, 
in which event Contractor shall be responsible for the 
difference, if any, between the Contract Sum provided foriin this 
contract and the total amount paid for the cost of the Work, 
including all sums paid to Contractor. No failure on the part of 
either party to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right 
or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. 

c. This Contract shall be governed by, and construed in 
accordance with, the laws of the State of Alabama. 

d. Contractor represents to City that Contractor is generally fmiliar with the types or sites 
where the Work is to performed. 

Rojcct Coordinator: Jacky McCtcndon (205) 802-3875 



e. contractor shall be responsible for taking all precautions 
required for the safe performance and the protection of the Work. 

In witness whereof, City of Mountain Brook has caused this 
contract to be executed by its duly authorized Mayor and Contractor 
has caused this contract to be executed by its duly authorized 
corporate officer, on the dates set forth beneath their respective 
signatures, but to be effective as of the date stated on the first 
page of this contract. 

ATTEST: CZTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

By : 
Its City Clerk Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Date : March 10 , 2014 

Xts 
(Title) (Type or print name) 

Its 
(Title) 

Date : C 

Project Coordinator. Jacky McClendon (205) 802-3875 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

HIGHWAY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS, INC. 
DATED MARCH 10,2014 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thehhis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and Highway Management Systems, Inc. ("'the Contractor") 
dated March fO,20 14. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or  inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or  inconsistent terms or  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or  eliminate rights or remedies that would be available to the City under othenvise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or  supplement of or  to the principal agreement, whether or  not expressly acknowledged 
or  incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or  suspend the operation of the Addendum or any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Defirritiot~s. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The Ciry" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (Chis) Agreement " refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "The Cor~trncror" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

2. Arbitrutiotr; Medinlior~; Alternate Dispifte Resoliitiort. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorrrey's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Paynrerrt Clmrges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bil Is rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

Indemt~fication; Hold-Hflrtrrfess; Release; Waiver; Littritntiorts of Liabiliiy or Renredies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnitjt, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. CItoice of Law; Clioice of Venue or FOFIIIII. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Corrstrrrctioti ofAddendum Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict orabrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8. AInbnnra Inlrrrigrfltion Lmv Cot~zpliance Corrtrnct. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawfbl for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personalIy 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Veritjl Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
lmmigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fahion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnitjl and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this day of March, 2014. 

Highway Manngcment Systems, Inc. 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By: 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
56 Church St. 

mUN!l!AlN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213 
OETICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (cIm MANAGER) 

BID COVER SBEEI! 
Bid Request Posted this Dale: 02/04/2014. Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: 02/2612014 @ 2:00 p.m. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Bids shall be sealed and delivered to the Office of the Purchasing Agent in the City Hall, City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, prior to the above specified date and time. Bids shall be publicly 
opened at the date and time specified above or as soon as practicable thereafter. 

To be considered by the City, a bid must comply with Alabama Iaw, including, but not limited to, 
Ala. Code (1975) $541-16-50 et seq. and 31-13-1 et seq., and provide documentation of 
enrollment in the E-VerifL program pursuant to Ala. Code $3 1-13-9. 

A11 bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the project. This Bid Cover Sheet 
should be completed and submitted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. 
Bids should be clearly marked "SEALED BID" and indicate on the outside of the envelope the 
project for which the bid is submitted and the date of bid opening. 

The City i-esentes the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be 
provided with the request for bids. 

The City reserves the right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible 
bidder, in which case specific information shall be provided with the request for bids. 

the right to accept or reject any or dt bids and to waive formalities. 

Manager and Purchasing Agent 

Specifications for Project No. MI 02-2014: Street Striping for Traffic and pedestrians 
tbroughout the City of Mountain Brook, Public Works Department. 

BIDDER lXlXHWAY b'lANXEMENJ! mmr INC- TELEPHONE 205-663-1 51 1 

ADDRESS 1 1  10 HIGHWAY 31, CALERA, AL 35040 

EMAI .lT-YSTBVS. ORG 

CITY CAIZRA STATE zp 35040 

BID AMOUNT (AS PER SPECIFICATIONS) $ 354 500 O0 

I--, ! My Commission Expires: 

MY COMMISSlOH WIRES OCTOBER IS, 2014 



1 Title: I My Commission 

SPECIFICATIONS FOR: PROJECT NO. MI 02-2014: Street Striping for Traffic 
and Pedestrians throughout the City of Mountain Brook, Public Works Department. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 

The successful bidder shall furnish all materials, supplies, equipment, fuel, tools, and perform all labor to 
complete the street striping project to meet the City of Mountain Brook's regulations. 

All traffic control shall be the responsibility of the successful bidder. 

Successful Bidders will be required lo furnish performance bond and labor and materials bond; and to advertise 

completion of the contract in accordance with Alabama State Law. Contractor must be licensed, bonded, and 

furnish proof of liability insurance and name, the City of Mountain Brook as additional insured on liability 
insurance. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

All work shalt be completed within thirty (30) days after issuance of work order. If not, this will be grounds for 
canceling the contract. 

The work is to be done on an as needed basis with no specific quantities at any one time. 

See attached list of estimated quantities. 

This bid shall be good for a period of 36 months from the time a putchase order is issued. The City 
reserves the right to increase or decrease quantities without a change in bid price. 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon (205) 802-3875 



LIST OF ESTIMATED QUANTITIES 

Proof of Liability Insurance: 

DESCRlPTlON 
Solid yellow, Class A Type1 
Traffic Stripe 
Solid White, Class A, Type I 
Traffic Stripe 
Raised Reflective Traffic 
Markers 
Thermo Plastic 24" wide 
White 
Thermo Plastic 8" wide 
White 
Thermo Plastic Turn Arrows 
White 
Thermo Plastic Centerline 
Yellow 
Thermo Plastic Side Lines 
White 

Company: PENN NATIONAL INSURANCE 
J. SMITH LANIER & COMPANY 

Name and Title: RYAN McCLENDON (AGENT) 

QUANTITIES 
50 

50 

6,000 

14,000 

4,000 

100 

200,000 

100,000 

Date: FEB. 18, 2014 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon (205) 802-3875 

UNIT 
Miles 

Mi'eS 

Each 

Sq. ft. 

Sq. ft 

Each 

Linear 
feet 
Linear 
feet 

UNIT BID 
$750.00 

$750.00 

$ 6.00 

$ 5.00 

$ 4.00 

$ 75.00 

$ 0. 50e 

0.500 

TOTAL BID 

AMOUNT 

$ 37,500.00 

37,500.00 

36,000.00 

70,000.00 

16,000.00 

7,500.00 

100,ooo.OO 

50,000.00 

$ 354,500.00 



Dec 19 '2013 14 : 16 : 05 -> 2856631936 J Sm i t11 Lan i er Page 003 

Client#; 98640 22HIBHWAYMAN 

ACORD, CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MMIDUIYWV) 

1211 91201 3 
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY A N 0  CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. OHIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE lSSUlNG INSURER(S). AUTHORIGD 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

.... .. . -.-- .---,.-.,.. ............. -̂.̂ --.--.---.- - .--XI-- - . t _ l " " . . I X I L I . _ l I I  -.--.... - 
IMPORTANT: If Ihc ccrllficale holder i s  an ADDITIOMAL INSURED, he pottcy(1es) lnrlst he endorsed. tf SUBRQGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and conditions of the polley, certain policles may requlre an endorsement. A statement on this cerllflcate does not confer rights to the 
eertlncate holder in  lieu of such endorsement(e). 
PRODVCBC( .,*US. 

J Smith Lnnlcr CL Co-Slrmlngham 
P. 0. BOX 43328 
Blmmlngham, AL 35243 
205 969-21 31 
--.---- .-,,--".----..-- .- .-. 
INIURED 

Highway Management Systems. Inc. 
1110 Hlrrhwav 31 

. ... . .  AUORE5.S: .--.. - -. . . . .  .- .. - 
INSURCH!8) &FPOR,V!NQCOVER&GE NAtc u .. 

IrJsuRERA. Pennsylvania National Mutual Ca 14990 . ...-- ............ I-. .. .^ -..-... *-... ........ -..-.-- .. ._. _-. _* 

INSURCH 9 .  Alabama Solf Insured  WC F u n d  

INSURERC. M l d w ~ s t  E r n p l o y ~ r s  Casualty Cornp i - 
INSURER 0: ---.- I --- . ., - - - ._ -_ . .  
INSURER E . ---- .---- . --------,a- - . I I 

I I 
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

I I 

I I IhSUReR F . 1 I 
COVERAGES CERTJFICATE NUMBER. REVISION NUMBER: 

TL.113 13 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POI-ICIES OF INSUMME LISTED BELOW IfAvEOEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED FlAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
ItJDICAED. NOTWlV4STANDlNO ANY RCQIJIREMEPJT. TERM OR CONDITIONOF AtJY CONTRACT OR OTllFR OOCllMKtJ1. Wln t RCSPCCT 50 Wt-IICI-I ~1~818 
CERTIFICATE MAY DE ISS~JED OR MAY PERTAI~J. TI.IE INSURANCF AFFORDED R Y  THE POLI(; FS DESCR aen ~IFRFIN IS SIJUJECT TC) A.I. THE VRMS. 

City of Mountain Brook 
3928 Mo~rtclair Road 2nd Floor 
Blrminglram, AL 35273 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED REFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVlG!QNS. I 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE I 

City of Mountoln Brook Is natnad a8 Add i t iona l  Insured as rospocb to tho Gonorn l  L iab i l i ty  policy doscrihod 
rbovn w h a n  raqu i red  by wr l t tan  contract,  but only with raspnclR to operat ions of tho narnod lnatrred and 
subject to provlslons and llrnltallons of the polky. 

POLICIE!3. 
. A D ~ S U B R  

WYQ 

- 

. -. 

- . -.- 

(Annch 

I.IMITS SllOWN MAY I.iAVC RREt4 4tDlH:tD DY PAID CI.AMZ; EXCLUSIL>NS AND C(>NDITIONS OF SUCIi 
--.-*--.--+-.. ------.-- W TYPE of INSURANCE :INSR 

A ~ E N E  RAL LIABILITY 

I 
CORPORATION. Al l  rights rusarved. 

--.-.----.*-.-- -..--.-- - -.--.-----,-.-.--,. 
POLI~Y ~J~JMBBR 

CL90627983 

A 

-.- 
A 

-- 
B 
c 

-- 

ACORD 25 (2010105) 1 of 1 The ACORD name and logo nre registered marks of ACORD 
#S21 t29131M2112860 HXR 

L, T- cp8,06rr5tv,~M8hoX.~!I 
O~l01l20ld 

-*---.-. ----.....-.-- .. 
JEN'L AC.(jlW(iAl t LIUI I Al'r'lqS PEI?: 

AUTOMOBILE LIAUltWY 

- ''* .- ........- _ ;- -._- 
LIMITS 

01101/2Q15 encn ar.c.unnrtrcr: - 

. .  

-- 
X -.-- 

-- 
2 
- 

X --- 
- . .  

*- 

,!:ril7l7ClS- C(%IP:iXaArjvL !_L Z,O o OOQOO 
f 

AU90627993 0110112014 O I I O ~ I ~ O I ~ , . ~ ~ ~ ~ ! ~ ' ~ ~ ' , ~ ~ ~ ~  4- $I,OOQ,OOO . ., _ _  .- 
8(3D LY IN,IUr7Y Wcm vrcrrlr I I S 

-.+-- -------- .,,,-.,,...., " .. -.---.-..--..-.-.-....-. .. . . .  -.-. 
UL906278fn 01 10112014 O~/d1/2015 ,cACi~~JCi~~I1riCtJi>~ ..... 

A G G R r a n r r  

. . , . ,  . ... - , - -,,.. . . .  - ... .. 
15518114 

ANY nurn 
A1 L OYlrTlED 
AIJTUS 

nrrm nr~r t l c ,  AUTOS 

--- ---.--. 
UMBRELIA UAB 

EXCESS LlAO 

.... 060 1 x r ~ ~  TEN 111s~ ~10000 

PKAL129001 

--. . .  ..-;a .. -.,. ......... -- -- 

WORKERS COMPENSA7lON 
AND EUPLOYERS' LIABILITY 
APJY PROWlETOR,FARTPlCRIBXECIJ1'I~IY ! ' 
C~FFICEFOMEMHEI? FXLLVTJE~~I  1 I N 1 A 
(Matdafory in NH) 
Ir yes, clwcrlDc* IrrrOu 

. ! % G ! Y L T S N S F S R A ~ I ~ . . ,  - .,.- . 

OEbCRIPmN OF OPERATIONS t LOCATIONS (VEHICLES ACORD 101. AJdllonal R U I I M ~ ~ ~  Ilch(rttt~l*. It mow BDMO P mquirb(0 

..... ....- ---.- _ - .-. , .L.-. 

E :. TACH M:G13CNT (,$I ,000,000 - 
- [ . L E K F  - F A  EL*IILOVCC~ I I & O ~ ~ O  ., , . ,, 

"-4, ... ysvec, wycr_l!b!r. [.?~,ooo,,ooo, , _, . 



Company ID Number: 4870W 

To be accepted as a participant in E-Verify, you should only sign the Employer's Section 
of the signature page. If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 888-464-421 8. 

Employer Highway Managements Systems, Inc. 

Patsy Franks 
Name {Please Type w Print) 

Electronically Signed 
Sqndure 

Title 

011~012012 
Date 

Department of Homeland Security - Verification Oivision 

USCIS Verification Division 
Name (Please Type or Print) 

Electronically Signed 
Signature 

0111012012 
Date 

lnformation Required for the E-Verify Program 

lnformation relating to your Company: 

Company Name: Highway Managements Systems, Inc. 

Company Facility ~ddress:lj$o Highway 31 South 

Calera. AL 35040 

Company Alternate 
Address: 

County or Parish: SHELBY 

Employer tdentification 
Number: 631025835 

Page 12 of 13 ( &Verify MOU for Employer ( Revnlon Date 09101109 



Company 10 Number: 48701 6 

North American Industry 
Classification Systems 

Code: 238 

Administrator; 

Number of Employees: 10 to 19 

Number of Sites Verified 
for: 1 

A r e  you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for 
in each State: 

r ALABAMA I sitc(s) 

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy 
questions or operational problems: 

Nmt: P ~ t r y  M Franks 
Telephone Number: (205) 663 - 151 1 Fax Number (205) 663 - 1936 
E-mail Address; frdnkrp~tsy@~mail.corn 

Page 13 of 13 J E-Verify MOU for Employer 1 Revision Dale 09101m9 



To: aMVWIU6ANOCblAIYIEES 

FROM: ME CIIY OF MOUHTAIN BROOK 
A r n r n N B O O N E  
P . o . B ~ ( ~ , M w N T ~ N B R o o K , A L A B * M A ~ ~  

1. PROWOE Thc Uly of Mountain Bmok (*the Qtyr) documentatIan wrpporllnn your eomplbnw wlth tl# 
hnrnl#rstbn Irw by Umcly submitti4 B m r a N L d ~ a f A l o ~ d m ~ C o m p r h ~ ~ ~  Burlnsr 
EW/unpkvv/CmhDnw to a PolWISuMMJm of thestme ufAlobunnr and an bVerlfv Memonndum of 
Untlerstandln~ 

2. PROVIDE UH ma w e d  .4loh1muknmlpretlon low CwnpNMce Conhpd k thr r ~ W ~ e d M f i c e  form prOVlded; 

3. PROVIDE yow ~ ~ 0 1 s  rmh of their mlnpllrnrt obRgtlons and OBTAIN fmm ucb a nota~LUpdovll 
d # o b w n a l ~ C a ~ b v o S v l a c M t m r e w .  

Thc nqutmnaa &we., i d  by HB 56, are *a mnd(tbnfor the award d r y  centnrt. mnt, or lmtive by 
the Slate of Alrbrunq, any Mltbl s u b d i i n  thmof, w m y  srat&unded MIly Lo r bwtnas enUW or emolover that 
employs one or more employees [workbq ln the smtt of AlsbamaJ..' As a hmctor' DTB ~mntre, if yw bdl& the$@ 
oblfgrhm do not apply to you, p h  MtYl the My Immdtdy.  

Youanalso required to o w n  hwn v w r m o r  notsrkcd AFFIDAW W IMMlORAnONQSMPLWPBYA 
~ O R A o n h r l ~ o f t h a ~ d ~ b d o w d t h a ~ n n w C # r t r e d o r I n ~ A d w l l l u a k t ~ I n ~ ~ t o  
whom to prdde mxke 

mmnm~mcMy[~g,whaabralneukEIwduatdbVpurdrw~),wdaummtJullsc~~your~ 
jmm@mn bmfi~c mUar language mall ako ke bclndudcd in aH fibldlC mma& and a w e e m e m d  wlfh the 
a t v a f m -  

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon (205) 802-3875 



AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMICRAWON COMPUANCE BY A 
BUSINESS ENTllY/EMPLOVER/OONlRAtTOR TO A WUWUL SUBDtVlSlON 

OF THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
(lo bo r o w  a# r rondltlon far Iho award of anvcentnh vsm, oriwnuv. by thm 5ul. olU.blmr,ay #PIWICII subdM~lOnthwd. w 
* r y  nrWundrdentkyloa burlnarentlty) 

FORM FOR SECnOW 9 (a) and (b] BWN-MAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CmZEN PROTECTION ACT; 
CODEOF ALABAMA, SCnONS 31-13-9 (a) and Ibl 

State of n 

tauntvd SHELBY 

Before me, a notary puble, personally appeared .Lm [print name) who, 
being duly sworn, saw as follows: 

Ar a mndition far the awad of anv cmm, gnnt  ar i n d u e  by the State of Alabama, any pallrlral 
subdrvislan thereof, or my statefunded entitv to a b u s l m  en* or emplwr that ernplovs one or more 
employees, 1 hereby anertthat In my capacity as PRESIDENT (~tate poritlon) 
for HIGHWAY-- (mtc busin= 
emfty/emp~r/contractor name) that sald business entity/employer/contraefor rhaD not lmowindy 
employ, Mre far employment, or continue to employ an unauthorlrcd allen. 

I further attest that sald buslnesr enti~/employer/contnctor Is enrolled In the E-Verify program. (ATTAM A 
COW OF YOUR ORGANIZATION'S E-VERIFY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO DOCUMENT THATTHE 
BUSINESS f NTITY/EMPLOYER/CONTRAaOR IS ENROLLED IN THE E.VERIFY PROGRAM.) 

I further attert that all sub-eontractorsln my employment are duly *E-Verify program and upon 
request can pmduw the appmprlate forms wrf@q such actlon 

48701 6 
E-VerHy User ldentl&atfon Number 

I Eertlfy that L a  afflant k know (or made Imown) 

MY co&hsbn ~xrrim: . . M Y I R E S  OCTOBER h, 2014 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon (205) 802-3875 



NmCE OF AUBAMA JMMlGRA'flON U W  WMWANCE REQUIREMENTS TO A U  
CONTRAC70RS OF THE ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

(''ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPLIANCE CONTRACT") 

Alabunr Imml#ntlPn h w  Cunplbnce mYt: C ~ t n C t a r r p a ~  thlt It wlll fully comply with the 
Immig.lbn Refwm md Control Act of1986 rs amended bv?he Lmrnlpbtbn M of 1990, a d  tha Buron- 
Hamman Al~&nu Taquyer m d  C M m  Pmcdrn Act, whlch mdru k u l d u l  fwrn rmpbycr b 

rE#d~i~tokgr~l ly~lntht  ~ n ~ ~ ~ ~ w ~ l ~ ~ n m v ~ ~ r n m ~ t o w o r t r n & ~ l t r  
of Nabrrm. WRhm IImItlngths f-& Con- h W  not M n d y  employ, hlra for u n p l w n t  
ormntrnue to employ an unauthorlzedrUtn, and sh~ll hsvr m officer w other mriu~tdal  unployec vd~o h 
p ~ o n ~ t l y  fmiht wlm the Contnctor's hlrlng p n m  to q a M s  sn emdlvtt m ehls cffm on the fctm 
supldM by the Basrd and mum tha m a  ta the Oty. Contndor shell ~I lo  enroll b the E-Vmly m m  
prior m PMfmn#mv warlr, or cmldnutng to perfom any o w n #  wwk, snd Wll remain enrolled 
thrwghout the entlm mum of Its perfofmum herrmnder, ud ~ J H  attach m Its a f l ih l f  ths EVsrlly 
Proprm for Empbnnent Verlscsebn and M a ~ n n d u m  afUndorstmdl# md wch other dowmcnmtlan IncOrporatad 
u the Bwrdmry ~ g u i t - 8  toconfbn Ccntradoh enm(lmentln bhc E - W  Pnwarn, bmr#tor r p e  hto mnc+rec 
M n t ~ ~ n g l y a l b w m y o f h ~ o r r n y ~ p o n y ~ w h a k h o r a r n ~ l l r ~  
I n h S t a c d A * b m o n y ~ ~ ~ u ~ ~ m ~ a n y d h ~ w ( t h t h e  addendum. 
~ d ~ l n d u d a b d o ( I L I u m ~ r ~ ~ ~ H y d m ( l u m 1 M r p l n g n o h .  H 
t o n t r a c t w n a h m a t b l r l ~ d l h e u ~ u t h o r l r c d r t s ~ D T o n d l t r ~ h I h a ~ ~ o f  
~ m s , l t w D I  move thmem+hwnthc pmichlobJteor premkcrdm+tnymd dull cornply 
wlth the m u o n  R e h  and tMlW Act d m, u MKnded by the tmm&ratlon M d l990, and tht 
BeasmHJmmon NbbJnU T~IpJyer m d a m  Roocabn An. C ~ t n a o l d d l  requlre each MI l r  
~ n t n e a o n , o r ~ u p r ~ w l t h w h o m n h o r a m e r h m ~ i n a d ~ * I f u h l ~ .  ffcontnctor 
ulohksuy Lrnnoffflk ~ ~ , t N r ~ , E m l e n t w i l t  bc subJMmItnmdhBtrmd~tia,bv thealy. TO 
m + f v l l n t u t c n t p c r m ~ b y b w , C o M R d o r 8 ~ 6 ~ m d , l n d e m n ~ M d h o l d h r ~ ~ c O t v ~ m v  
andJ brus, cmscqumthl c h r n a ~ ,  -r (lndudbg, but not U& to, rtmmyr' fees), dslms, wjk, 
I ~ l h , h S , ~ ,  J ~ M ~ O ~ ~ C I ~ J ~ ~ L M D U ~ ~ O ~ ~ ~ ~ W W B V ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ & S ~ ~ ~ V ~ ~ ~  

To th. utat that there I I  no fond wv&n conlrwt ktwnscn the Ow md the hatractor (a&, whm brainorz Ir 
conducted by pufchax o h ) ,  thls document *It serve as the LSlknv lnunhmbn CMnplIancc Contract. 

Al8bmwa l r n m b a t l ~  L.w LampHma! OPnPnn NolloldaPwl- Cmmcm don nrnu 

Prinl NJn=# t I t lCom~~  !sY!mMs, mc. 
Plclsueneew md return m M E  ClTY OF MOUNTAIN SRODK, W w N h i n  tk nen 10 dap I 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon (205) 802-3875 



Project Coordinator: Jacky McCIeridon (205) 802-3875 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-026 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby awards the bid for utility street cut repairs to Smith Paving, Inc. ("Contractor"), being the 
low bidder. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the Mayor or City Manger are hereby authorized to execute a contract and addendum, in the form as 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

ADOPTED: The 10th day of March, 2014. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The 10th day of March, 2014. 

. - - 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certifL the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resofution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its regular meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Smith Paving Street Cut Bid and Contract 



Cityaf M d n  Brook Mall - Street Striping and Uiillty Cut Bids 

Steve Boone cboones@mtnbrook.org> 

Street Striping and Utility Cut Bids 
1 message 

Fri, Feb 28, 2014 at 8:49 AM Ronald Vaughn <wughnr@mtnbrook.org> 
To: Sam Gaston *gastons@mtnbmok.org~, Stem Boone cboones@rntnbrook .erg* 
Cc: Doms Kenny <kennyd@mtnbrook.org*, Jackie McClendon <mcclendonj@mtnbrook.~rg~~ Michael Rollo 
<rollom@mtnbrook.org> 

After reiewing both of the subject bids I would recommend that we go with the low bidder on each. For the street 
striping it will be and on the utility cuts Smith Paving. Both of these bids meet or exceed bid 
specifications. 

Doris has all of the bid packages in her oflice. 

Thanks 

Ronnie Vaughn 
Public Works Director 
City of Mountain Brook AL 
3579 East Street 
Birmingham , Alabama 35243 
205.802.3865 Office 
205.967.2631 Fax 
\aughnr@mtnbrook.org 





CONTRACT 

This contract is entered into, as of the loth day of March 2014, by City of 
Mountain Brook, an Alabama municipal corporation, ("City") whose address is 3928 Montclair Road, 
Suite 232, Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 (P. 0. Box 130009, Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213-0009), 
and Smith Paving, Inc., a corporation, ("Contractor") whose address is 5 15 1-D Cahaba Valley Road, 
Birmingham, Alabama 35242. 

City and Contractor agree as folIows: 

I. Descriwtion of Work. The work to be done under this contract shall consist of the repair 
of utility cuts in the streets and rights of way of City ("Work"). The repair of each utility cut shall be 
considered a separate project ("Projecty7). The asphalt, concrete and other materials used by Contractor in 
the performance of the Work must comply with the specifications of City. 

2. Term. This contract shall remain in effect for a period of three (3) years from the date of 
this contract, as provided above, and shall be subject to cancellation as provided hereinafter. 

3. Commencement Date. The date of commencement of the Work of each Project 
("Commencement Date") shall be within forty-eight (48) hours of Contractor's receipt from City of a 
written or verbal notice to commence the Work. The time for completion shall be measured from the date 
upon which the Work is commenced, but not later than forty-eight (48) hours after Contractor's receipt of 
such notice 

4. Com~letion Date. The Work shall be completed within a reasonable time, based upon the 
circumstances of each Project, but in no event later than five (5) days from the Commencement Date 
("Completion Date"). If Contractor is unable to complete the Work by the Completion Date because of 
matters beyond its control, including strikes, shortages of material and governmental preemption in 
connection with a national emergency, the time for completion of the Work shall be extended by the 
length of time equal to the duration of any such matters. 

5 .  Contract Sum. For each Project City shall pay Contractor the sum of forty-five dollars 
($45.00) per square yard for the repair of cuts in asphalt surfaces and forty-five dollars ($45.00) per 
square yard for the repair of cuts in concrete surfaces ("Contract Sum"). 

6. Pavments to Contractor. Payments shall be made to Contractor within ten (10) 
days after the satisfactory completion of the Work in accordance with this Contract and upon receipt by 
the City of invoices requesting such payment. Payments due and unpaid under this contract shall bear 
interest, at the rate of eight per cent (8%) per annum, from the date payment is due until the date payment 
is made. 

7. Change Orders and Amendment of the Contract. This contract may not be amended, nor 
may the Work or the scope of the Work be changed, except in accordance with the terms of a written 
change order signed by City and Contractor. No change order shall cause a modification in the Contract 
Sum or the time for the completion of the Work unless the change order specifically provides for such 
modification. 

EXHIBIT A 



8. Insurance. During the term of this contract, Contractor shall maintain in effect the 
following Insurance, in at least the following amounts. Contractor shall furnish City certificates of 
insurance showing that such insurance is in full force and effect and that such insurance may not be 
cancelled without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to City. 

Insurance Amount 
workers' compensation statutory 
general liability $1,000,000 
auto liability $1,000,000 

9. Miscellaneous: 

a. Contractor shall obtain and pay for all necessary licenses, permits and fees 
required to perform the services and Work which Contractor is obligated to perform under this 
contract. 

b. Upon default under this contract by City, City shall become liable for 
Contractor's costs of collecting any amount due and owing by City to Contractor as of the date of 
default, including reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by Contractor. Interest shall accrue from 
the date of default at the rate of eight per cent (8%) per annum. Should City default while the 
Work is in progress and before final completion of the Work, Contractor, at its sole option, may 
elect to cease performance of the Work. If City falls to cure the default within ten (10) days after 
Contractor gives notice of the same, Contractor may declare this contract terminated. If 
Contractor does not perform the Work in a satisfactory manner, or in the event of any other 
default by Contractor under this contract, City may terminate this contract and/or may have the 
Work completed by another contractor or contractors during the entire, unexpired term of this 
Contract, in which event Contractor shall be responsible for the difference, if any, between the 
Contract Sum provided for in this contract and the total amount paid for the cost of the Work, 
including all sums paid to Contractor. No failure on the part of either party to exercise, and no 
delay in exercising, any right or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof. 

c. This Contract shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 
State of Alabama. 

d. Contractor represents to City that Contractor is generally familiar with the types or sites 
where the Work is to performed. 

e. Contractor shall be responsible for taking all precautions required for the safe 
performance and the protection of the Work. 

In witness whereof, City of Mountain Brook has caused this contract to be executed by its duly 
authorized Mayor and Contractor has caused this contract to be executed by its duly authorized corporate 
officer, on the dates set forth beneath their respective signatures, but to be effective as of the date stated 
on the first page of this contract. 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

By: 
Its City Clerk Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Date: March lO,20 14 

EXHIBIT A 



ATTEST: 

la 
(Title) 

SMITH PAVING, INC. 

By: 

(Type or print name) 

Its 
(Title) 

Date: 

EXHIBIT A 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
TWE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

SMITH PAVING, INC. 
DATED MARCH 10,2014 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thelthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the City") and Smith Paving, Inc, ("the Contractor7') dated March 10, 
20 14. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or  inconsistent terms o r  provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting or  inconsistent terms o r  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are  provided herein o r  under otherwise applicable law, o r  to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or eliminate rights o r  remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or supplement of or to the principal agreement, whether o r  not expressly acknowledged 
o r  incorporated therein. No agent, employee, o r  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, o r  suspend the operation of the Addendum or  any of its terms o r  provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Defiirtitiorts. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (ihis) Agreenrenf " refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "The Confractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbitration; Mediation; Alterrtnte Disprite Resofirtion. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicabIe law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attortrey's Fees,. Court Costs; Litigotio~t Expeifses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to tlie extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4, Late Paytttent Clrarges; Fees; interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

I~~demn@catioit; Hold-Harntless; Relense; Wniver; Lit?rjfntior~s ofliabiilty or Remedies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnifjr, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

8. Cl~oice of Law; Choice of Venue or Form.  The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
othewise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Cottsrruciion ofAddendrmr. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8, Afnbantn I~~intigration Law Compliattce Contmcf. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawfu! for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-VeriQ to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in tlie State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
afidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractofs enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its empIoyees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this day of March, 2014. 

Smith Paving, Inc. 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By : 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 
56 Church St  

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 35213 
OFPICE OF PURCHASING AGENT (CITY MANAGER) 

BID COVER SHEET 

Bid Request Posted this Date: 02/04/2014 Bids to be Opened this Date and Time: 02/26/2014 @ 1:30 p.m. 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Bids shall be sealed and delivered to the Office of the Purchasing Agent in the Cicy Hall, City of Mountain 
Brook, Alabama, prior to the above specified date and time. Bids shall be publicly opened at the date and 
time specified above or as soon as practicable thereafter. 

To be considered by the City, a bid must comply with Alabama law, including, but not limited to, Ala. 
Code (1975) $541-16-50 et seq. and 31-13-1 et seq., and provide documentation of enrollment in the E- 
Verify program pursuant to Ala. Code 531-13-9. 

All bidders must use the bid form provided by the City for the project. This Bid Cover Sheet should be 
completed and submitted with the bid. Bids completed in pencil will not be accepted. Bids should be 
clearly marked "SEALED BID" and indicate on the outside of the envelope the project for which the bid is 
submitted and the date of bid opening. 

The City reserves the right to require a bid bond, in which case specific information shall be provided with 
the request for bids. 

The City reserves the right to utilize life cycle cost analysis in determining the lowest responsible bidder, in 
which case specific information shall be provided with the request for bids. 

gbt to accept or reject any or all bids and to waive formalities. 

Sam sk&a>ton, C i t y  ~ a n z e r  and Purchasing Agent 

Specifications for Project No. MI 03-2014: for Repair of Utility Cuts for the City of Mountain Brook, 
Public Works Depsemcnt. 

BIDDER $dC 

ADDRESS 

STATE 

BID AMOUNT ER SPECIFICATIONS) 

I 

Notary Public, Alabama State At Large 
My Commlsslon fxplres March 19,2017 



SPECIFICATIONS FOR PROJECT NO. MI 03-2014: For Repair' of Utility Cuts for the 
City of Mountain Brook, Public Works Department. 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 

The successful bidder shall furnish all materials, supplies, equipment, fuel, tools, and perform all labor to 
properly complete the repair of utility cuts to meet the City of Mountain Brook's regulations. 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS: 

The repair of asphalt utility cuts shall consist of squaring of sides and edges and installing six (6") inches of 

binder asphalt on a compact sub-grade and a one (1") inch asphalt seal course. 

All concrete repairs shall be the same thickness as adjoining concrete, using 3,000 Ib. P.S.I. concrete. 

Concrete shall be oker in color. 

All work shall be completed in a satisfactory and timely manner. If not, this will be grounds for canceling the 

contract. 

All traffic control shall be the responsibility of the successful bidder. 

Estimated square yards of utility cuts to be repaired per year - 800 square yards. 

Successful Bidders will be required to furnish performance bond and labor and materials bond; and to advertise 

completion of the contract in accordance with Alabama State Law. Contractor must be licensed, bonded, and 

furnish proof of liability insurance and name, the City of Mountain Brook as additional insured on liability 

insurance. 

Contract will extend for 36 months from time of awarding of this contract to the 
selected vendor. The City reserves the right to increase or decrease quantities 
without a change in bid price. 

Bid Per Square Yard of Asphalt: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205-802-3875. 



Bid Per Square Yard of Concrete: ‘ p Y 3  

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205-802-3875. 



To: aOMRACFQ1SANDCIUHIEES 

FROM: ME CIW OF MOUMAIN BROOK 
ATTM STMN BOONE 
P. 0. BaK m, MWNTUN BRODK, ALARAW 35Zl34ZW9 

7 h c p l r p a ~ c d t h k M ~ m I r m a k y w m t h e ~ h I m m l g s ( b n L s w ~ f f ( m ~  
requkcmcnts that bcesme effatkmlanuary 1.20lZlh0rcm dbarscd ~IUCIII and a n  b e m - a s M  

1. PRDIDDEThe Otv of Mowtain B m k  (*he CIW] doarmanmthn rppardn~ your mmpllance M h  the 
lrnmlpatlon law by Urndy submlRin~ a n o t l d z e d ~ t o f & b m k n r n @ u H M  Cbmpllancclry a d d n u  
~ q ~ u / / t M ~ r t w  lo o ~ d l ~ ~ c o l k r b d ~ a f  t h e s m  ~.~AMwo md an E-Verlfv Memorandum of 
Undmndlng 

2. PnWlDE the Uty a simed Al~bomolmn@mh law bmprrOm Contmrth the owadred lllaticr form provldEd; 

3. PR6tlDEywr Ulkontndors narire of W r  m m p l i m u ~ l ~ t l o n s  end OBTAIN fmm udr a ncurlzed~dodt 
o ~ ~ b r m n ~ C r m Z b n r r b v a ~ .  

Tht nqutmmn .bow. Immwd by HB 56. a n  'a mnditbn for the rvrrrd of any oontnd. gmt, ar Incentive by 
the Ynr of Alabama, e y  pofMoI ~~Wlykbn tkmd, of any #at+fundtd t* to a Wines cnUw ofemptoy@r that 
tm* one ar moreernplov [workfng In the State of~labmaJ."Ar a ~ o n ~ r ' o r  a Gmmee, If yw bdkw these 
oMIgaUom do not apply to you, pksre notffytheChy Immedlaiely. 

ForpurcMMnlwrr hnLdu&d  for ywrusea ample MMWOF ALABAMA IMMlCIUnON EWPWE 
BY A B W I N 5 5 E N m Y / E M v  APOUTlULSUBMV140N WTttE5'fAfE OFAWAMA Ples~ampkk, 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205-802-3875. 



AFRDAVR' OF ALABAMA IMMlGRATlON COMPUANCE BY A 
BUSINESS E N T ~ / E M ~ R / W ~ ~ O R  TO A m m a ~  SUBDIVISION 

OF THE !TAT€ OF AIABAMA 
{ l o  Mmm#rud r mndhlon torUv awardd rnycontrrhvmt, orhemlive by lha 5uu dAlal2rm8,any polWl  w#Mllon thereofcar 
ry -o&d rntitywa burlnurartlwl 

FORM FOR SECnONS 9 (a) and (b] BLASON-HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CITIZEN PROlECTlON ACT; 
ONS 31-13-9 (a) and (b) 

print name! who, 

As a condition fix the award of any contract, gram or Incentfve by thestate of Alabama, my potltlcaf 
that employs one or more 

[state business 
w/amtraaor shall not knawindy 

I furthet attest that said buslness ~nti*l/smployer/conWactor Is enmtled in the E-Verlfy praanm. (AWMtI A 
COPY OFYOUR ORGANIUTJON'S E-VERIFY MEMORANOVM OF UNOERSTANOING TO QOCUMEM THAT THE 
BUSlNESS ENTlTV/EMPtOYfR/CONTRAtTOR IS ENROLLED IN THE E-VERIFY PROGRAM'l 

further attest that all rubsontractors In my emplay program and upon 
request can pmdua? the appropriate fanm v c r ~ l n ~  

E-Verify User l d e ~ c a t l m  Number 

Sworn to and rubralbed before me t h b a d a y  of % ~ Y M ~ U  I a& 
J 

I certify that thr f lsnt  Is known [or made known) to me to ba the ldentkal party he or she claims to be. 

A 

SJ$latde and Seal of Notary Publl 
My Commfrsl~n Wires: 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205-802-3875. 



NOTICE Of AUBAMA IMMIGRATION tAW COMWANCE REQUIREMENTS TO A U  
CONTRACTORS OF THE CCIYOF MOUNTNN BROOK, ALABAMA 

("AIABAMA lMMlGRATlON COMPLlANCE CONTRACF) 

Ale cmmcrw, as dcflned In the Act, to THE Orr OF MOUNTAIN UdDLI AL4RAMA ('rheCltyrJ, It b crltld to your 
mlatlmshlp (Mum or conUnulnn1 wlth theClty that yw mplvwlM fhe InunIgmIlon R e f m  and CmWd And 1086, ns 
m e d  by ~e I-n md 1990, Yd 6 s  h . w n a m  Nabam T Md mltn w a m h  kt .  k o d n l l y ,  
pkasc mv&te your A W d t  nf rmmlcmh bmplhnea &!I M c r l  GVcmKy Mtmonndm ofUdem~ndln& JS re@ 
In the muhldmanorandum Hw do not Wim thrwoblIzallonr apply lo vw, pleau notlfytht sty ~mmedlatelv, 

Effdw Janwry 1,2012, snw contrau mtad Into bv ths My a cantraetM will comln the fdlowi~druro #one 
wbrtamU)y shflar: 

Alabama Imtnl#nlion law Candlmce antrKt: Contmctoragacs that It will fully comply with Lhe 
Lmmlptbn Re- and tonaal Actd Is=, w amended by Ule hrnlglUon Mof 1990, and the Bur#l* 
HrmmOn W!lU fawayer md M* m l o n  A4 whkh f M k U  It unbdul (or m wpbyn In 
Akbsnv to Lnwlndy hlre orwntlnuc b amploy an Men rrholr or hrs k c a e  uuulhorlLsd wlth nrpm 

of Uabmr. Wlhu!Ilmlb[ng the fom@~& CMtnna rh.g not M n & m p b y ,  hlra fwunpbymcnt, 
orcontJnuc to emiMvanwvthprlztd rkn,  mil r)un bve an Mlw a Dthu m m ~ l  mplovee who Is 
pmmally frmlfirr ulth the Umtrb~tor's hh1ncpf1ClleS to ~ o n a  ilna~ldavlt t o ~ i  dcct M the farm 
urpplrcd by the Bold and rtulm th~samc Ia the Qtv, IhWacCor hall a h  enroll In the E-V&fv Propun 
priato pufcrmlnt my wort, or contlIUdn80 pcrlm any wcdng warl;, and shall nmrln e ~ d l e d  
thmughwt the andln ~ w v ~  of tts p d m n c a  hereunder, a d  dull rtuth to Its sMlvk  the E-VefWy 
Program for Empbymnt VerlRutlon and Memomdm of Undasundlngd wch othudoormentatlon Incorporated 
as the 8oardmsyrequbetnmnRnn CMIMM'S afdbnmtl !he E VVcrlfy Pmpnm. ConVwDor apebs iDeo Eontract 
n o t t o h ~ n & a H w m y o f I t s ~ ~ ~ a r a n y ~ p u t y l w t m w h a n k h s a m n m c l , t o m ~ q  
h ~ 5 t r n e d ~ b P m e a n y U k p l ~ u ~ ~ l l l w r m ~ m y w a L l n ~ w l t h t h a  
Pmjcet wnd s h l l  lndudc In aU d )tr contnnr a provlslon Ivbrontblly Ihnfl.r m LNI primgraph. If 
Contractor rewlves actual k n o w l a ~ o f t h e  unauthorized drtur of ma of Itrempluyeej in theSt~te of 
~bmr,ltwlH~movl~mpbyethomtht~~b~taorpcmtrezdthrOtyaml~I mpb 
with the Immrpltfon ~ f o r r n  and ~ o n t r d  &I of 3986, u amadtd by the lmmlgmtlon kt d 1980, end tho 
Beaon+Hammar Alabama Tarpayer and O t l m  Ptmh Ah ContnCtw &I1 requVe each d tts 
~ u ~ ~ , m o t h r r p ~ ~ w h w n n h r s a c o n t n h r n M t h e s l m l W C ~ l o n .  Ifcon- 
vblatcsanv (mm of Ms pmvlrlon, mfr A g r m ~ t  wUl In? d @ t  to hmadlate termhthn by th@Clty, TO 
the fullcn utw prmlmd by Inv, tomndor ha11 defend, LndtmnWand hdd hrnnlas thr Chyfrrn any 
and dl loses, cmumt (c l l  damages, cxuems (Indud@ krt not UmHod to, a w n &  fw), ddms,&ts, 
Wlws ,  flnes, pmlltlcs, 8 I d  w OW c m ~  arWw art dor In wwwav mlacd IO C#urruots frYuretO 
fulRn Ilobl@atfm conWned In thlr paragraph. 

To the crlmt tJut thne km I a m l  wIfnm m u  b@Wecn the My and the CMltnctw (e.t, whvherc! budnus Is 
conducted by purohrx o w ,  this dacummt Ihrll sere a s h  Al~b~rm I n w n l m  6 m p b n c a w  

V 

Please a e n M  and W m t O  THE Cm OF MOUNTAIN 0RWK.UABAMAwrtMn Ulr next 1Ddw 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McClendon 205-802-3875. 



AFFIDAVIT OF ALABAMA IMMIGRATION COMPUANCE BY A 
SUBCONTRACFOR TO A POUTCIAL SUBDIVISION 

OF THE STA'I'E OF AlABAMA 
IT0 b campmad r a mlbn lor llw rurd of any fSub15onmh B n n B  
rhc fd ,  arry rtaIe.fundrd rnUEylo a bMlnnl enw. TO BE lETVRHEO70 THE COMPACTOR OR G W E  OF WE CIW OF MOUNTAIN 
BRWK M*B1M*! 

FORM FORSECnONS 9 (a) and (b) BEASON-HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CmZEN PROTECTION ACT; 
WDE OF ALABAMA, SECllONS 3143-9 (a) and (b) 

State of 

County of 

&fore me, a notary public, personally appeared (prlnt name) who, 
belng duly sworn, says as fdlmvs: 

As a condluon for the award of any [sublcontrack IsubJgrant or lnc~ntlve by the State of Alabama, any 
politlcal urbdhrIJan thereof, or any state-funded entityto a business entity or employer that emplays one or 
mare employees, I hepby a m  that in my capcity ac (state 
posttlon) for (state bushes 
enMy/employtr/coWme&r name) that saki business enlty/employlr / [sub]~rshai l  mt knowingly 
employ. him for emplayment, or continue to employ an unsuthorlred alien. 

I further awest that rald buslnesr cntity/emplopr/contrsdor Ir anmUed In the E-Verlfy program. (ATTACH A 
COPV OF YOUR ORGANttATION'S E-VERIFY MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING TO DOCUMENT THAT THE 
BUUNESS W/EMPLOYER/[SUB~CONTRACTOR IS ENROUED IN THE E-VERIM PROGRAM.) 

I further atlest thet all sub-eonmctors in my employment are duly enrolled In the EVerlfy program and upon 
nquest can produce the appropriate forms vcrlfylng wrh adon. 

Slgnahrre of Affiant (an Officer or owner of [Sub]tontnctor) 

E-Verlfy User IdentHlutlon Number 

Sworn to and rubscrthcd Lfam me thls d a y  of p 2-- 

I cerWy that the afiimt fs known (or made known) to me to be the Identbi paw he or she dims to be. 

Signature and Seal of Notary Publk 
My Commlsrlon Expires: 

CONTRACT 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McCIendon 205-802-3875. 



. . . . . . . - . 
~ r N l n c m r r d o e v ~  

CHy olMeunCln B m k  
P. 0. Box 13000s 
Mountiln Bmolr, hL 3HS4DM 

rm. w-9 
w, Jmur). 2m9 
wm.-e.rrmy 
Wnyl4nsUS-e.. 

- 

Ensr pu TiN m cht sppqxbw bcn. Fa hdlvldurls, tWs k yow smml sear~ly nuder  ISSM. 
~ , l a ~ ~ U I m , ~  m W t y . m U m P a d l ~ m  
p r g t F o r o V a ~ r . k i r y a r m ~ & = ( E I N ) . I I y o u d ~ n o t h s R n n b e r ,  
seaHowmgetaTlManpsgsZ w 
1 Q c r : f f W ~ ~ k n r n r n ( h s n ~ ~ ~ ~ C h M ~ ~ Z ~ p r d c l m m ~ ~  
In- - csrurrcatbn 
Undr p.ollU.r d pnJI*y. 1 d y  Wt. 
1. T h p m m b e r s h O m m V n f ~ m k m ~ ~ w r t t r a p r ~ & r ~ a U M n u m b a c i a I m w ~ ~ l u r n u m b t a s b a b a u ~ m ~ , r o d  

u r o F r n W 4 @ y K  .n.u5.pmm 
~indudingan~dsn*!?+mpumrrt 
ntdmmpummquminpItwr~~a) 
M,whsllf@ka&.lo: 

i .C.nnym~youasgmingisras* iu  
yauuau&hgfurnumtulot*hrwd). 

zcmyvarnnolnqaromaw 
wwdhg, u 

1.aJmrPnplrmltambwrup-C 
puwsa~5.slarrplpawr. l.Youd+natrunim)wrT~4a!hm 

14U.IM. u 
prw 
CfMtUl  rn$ lo I* ~ u o o  

t YOU m not cwfy you riid vrhn nqm W ~ U Y  rwW c n U l c v  a rmnmna 
W ~ o f T m o n H o m 8 i d a Y ~ m d  b ~ ~ P a r ( U r n ~ ~ p ~ p e 2 J w  may r U ~ c l p u 1 9 ~ ~ ~ t r * r ~  
Fwdg Enm*r dclal4 cr fnn M a  rn- 
W~e#rrsgusur#ms)rw#t&norhum S.WlRSUgmmwwVlllpl U I ~ a , d l l N & l m d  akcb5mw 
~ ~ w . ~ m ~ s ~ n ~ . ~ w ~ n t ~ l b m  hm~d4ninunsct~rn.w u u s ~ ~ h i n ~ r n ~ ~ ~ a * : ~  
- d s  hw v* n srrwarr~rb s* r* tbr n, ( ~ 5  - art yRI U) 

~urmybaarkaau,MWauriru~ 
rum W 0. b.clrup W~&t t lg  ~lswuw p da m npm pm 

41 y a r h n a c n a d ~ m ) . a a I m r v t m  
flu rrpmabh imam MLI ddl*idsnds myh tr 

cr NO 102.11~ fm W-8 mw. 1 . 2 ~ 1 1  

i " Bu8Mlurn.UcWfmmhomlLsn sh~+\n f ' ~ ( / . \ d  
0 

Rrqusst k r  Taxpayer 
ldentiflcatlon Number and Certlflcatfon 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McCIendon 205-802-3875. 

tiw f ~ n n  to tho 
~ D ~ W S I U C  00 not 
CondlothOIRS. 



Specific instructions Application la IRS l n d i i m l  farpaya 
~otnrtncemn NU*. IO apply IW m InN, or 
Form S W ,  *ppWaW for Emproya 
IdentlnMlm Nwnber, lo appl lor vr ON. 
You CM gtl  F m s  W.7 a d  k . 4  fmm me 
IR5 by cUnp 1.BW.TAK.FORM 

I 11 .BM+l29-3676) or ftm ma IRS ww me m 
*m.lngw 

, Privacy Act Notlw 
S c c t i w 6 1 0 9 d ~ h r l R N M * ~  

p l  UJ give -st TIN lo 
m ~ m w ~ m w r t - s  
~ m h  chs 1RS to repcn hwsa dMdcndr md 

I e m  hlmm paid q ,p .  m& 
Wae#yh,pdd.m~or 

[ 8 ~ - d x a r e d p r o p c r t y .  
cwe%sPbn d d4bL u m ' t a l m s  
mdda to rvl IRA or - IAM.  he IF?- 
I h a ~ I c r I d w r i l i * p u ~ ~ d  
tohd v a H y i k m a w o c y d y c u r r p x r ~ n .  
ma I& may a ~ r o  mh  mi^ to 
h h a m 0 1 a f u c k l a n d  

wma lr you are en adnmrot ya, must 
~ a o a m E n s m s - m w v  

M ) o r r l a s t r u u n a  f a h s k  dusm 
W m a u r ~ ~ s c d a r S C c ~  !z%Lb" d m S n a m a ~ , c r r w  

~ h s t n g n s , d u l a r t m i k o w n a n ~ p *  
Wl sewtw card, and w nuw last name 

U ~ & ~ W ( O ~ F U T I W - Q ~  
do haw a nN. wne ' A P ~ Q ~ Q  FIX- ~rlw 

I spa= la !ha T.N. slpn and adte thr fam. Ir a&a is h* -, kt fmt and 
t h e n u ~ ~ n a m e d  fheoersmcrartirv 

umhil ndglUon, end 10 dm m-is. .nd 
ma Dma or cdum rn carry mt lnsr ar 
lawn. 

m me ~ N ~ m 0 .  line.-you may erw ydur 
bairns. wad& or 'd&g bush~s ar (DBLJ' 
naw ol bu ' E h s r  m e -  lina 

a . ~ e n b T U F & , " t ~ L !  
vhhsdonasllcDwnsrlthnakd~cda6 
anuWtysrpmtaCanbomawds 
TRPIW m@atkms 54Pfm M1.7701.3. 
UuUpmmfs-anfJm'NamW 
I V L d ~ I h C U C ' a - a & a ' h k w s  
nmu' Yna. 

ywmtesirrdlohatnr&PaPa~- '  
tlna gwurpry vrkhhdd 30% d lalrtll 
-I, dlYldma and mwn Ohsr paymems 
l o J p r y 6 . ~ d O s r n o t ~ a T l N t o 1  
pays Cerlatn piwaliar nGy alra apply 

What Name and Number To 
Give the Requester 
~ a W h * p r o f ~ ( ~ . r w m . n l ~ ~ ~ ~ d :  
1. .hdul Pan Il48rlMcStlon 

To esiaDHSh to UIO v d h t ~ ~ ~ a h g  rgem ~ l u t  you 
M I U 5. p t n m  ~r midmi ohen. sign Form 
W-9. You may be rcquHsd m &gn by lb 
v m ~ d n g  bga eva ir ilmr 1.3. am 5 
bdwl inaltara olhaw(sa. 

C n ~ m n k  ar m& hom h& 
~ f O I ~ 4 p b l ~ ~ .  s&as 
- a n U ~  F o r m a e ~ d m ( b n  
on memp seo m6 I m m m h s  for 
UM R.amw d Fam We9 

U y o u a t e ~ l a l k n a a f a d Q l  

3 ;** ,"zrn= @- 

F-3 a. 
m O m p f n m r O s c L u p  
P J M s o l - r ) r k  

f m r o m p a w i P r s e Y m m l u ~  - 
Part I-Tarpayw ldenUficatio11 
N - m  
E n k m ~ T l N k t h . ~ b o &  

I I y a r n a n r l d . n t . I l m a n d p r c b r v n  
h ~ v s l r r d s r a m  M e ~ o g a g a S M . y w  
~ N k p v l R S & Y .  qhm 
I-- - OTINI, 6% 
~ b l ~ l l y ~ l m D w D o a . l r ) W d O m c  
havesn~N,sesHow(opct~TINbdow. 

EIN, k h d 1 " X .  IRS @a (hsl you use 
w SW 

1. Othr pmynumu. You  mu^ g l ~  @UI 
nN t u t  you CIQ nM h e  10 

catdmcti u n t a  wu have Mu, 3 e d m  
w have p e h m  g k n  an hconcst 
TIN OVVT pl--kuOe Pun!tW 
mduinthscouladlherequulas UaOc 

bu~nns r~ r a * l ,  m y * b s t i s  bm 
W n  bilk for mvchmdhal, eal ud 
heskh car8 s e W e s  (Includhg poynenu UI 
corpmworn~ paymenn to J nwranplcyrm r~ -. paymau tn csnw C h k g  bolt 
m w  m b m  Md f m m .  and Wrs := PA-AT - nyntaremLU:th~tk~rrdr6rs  

rcpoav hom !ts ampr [see $7- CmSMy ILL" move,. m d  
a w o w d $ m ~ . a n a ~ S S M  
(or -ps.uC EM. l dnrsd). If b e  m r  d 

Project Coordinator: Jacky McCIendon 205-802-3875. 



BID LIMIT: u LICENSE NO.: 

AMOUNT: UNLIMITED RENEWAL 

$fafa Fr~xtaing pnarb far 6ex~rnl  Manfrnrfars 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT 

SMITH PAVING INC 

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35242 

is hereby licensed a General Contractor in the State of Alabama and is authorized to 

perform the following type(s) of work: 
HS: HIGHWAYS AND STREETS, MU*: CLEARING AND GRUBBING 

until June 30,2014 when this Certificate expires. 
Witness our hands and sea1 of the Board, dated Montgomery, Ala., 

lstday of June, 2013 

SECRETARY-TREASURER 



n SMlT HP I  OP ID: D9 - 

ACORD 

i I l l  I I I 
DESCRlPllON OF OPERATIONS1 LOCATIONSt VEHICLES {Attach ACORD 101, Addlllonll Remark. Schodulo. If mom span  Is roqulmdl 

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE - 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AhlEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THlS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 
IMPORTANT: If the certlflcate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the polley(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to 
the terms and condltlons of the policy, certain pollcles may requlre an endorsement A statement on thls certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder In lleu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER 
Cobbs Allen - SBU 

Phone: 205-414-8100 E%'EACT Debbie Davis 

Cobbs Allen Fax: 205-874-1310 I NO): 205-769-3581 

I I 
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

INFOPOR I I 

DATE (MMiDDWfYY) 

02/24/2014 

115 Offlce Park Drive, Ste 200 
Blrmlngham, AL 35223 
Burgett Tonsmeire 

INSURED Smith Paving Inc 

Information Purposes Only 

I THlS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THlS 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DEUVERED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

5151 Cahaba Valley Road Ste D 
Birmingham, AL 35242 

INSURER D : 

lNSURER E : 

INSURER F : 

YERS' UABIUTY 
01000004864111 

E.MAIL 
~DORESS: ddavls@cobbsallen.com 

INSURER(S] AFFORDING COVERAGE 

IN~URERA: National Fire Ins. of Hartford 
I N S U R E R B : A ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~  Self-Insured WC Fund 

NAIC I 

20470 
065020 

I 

AUTHORITED REPRESENTAlWE 

&4-c pu 
O 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (201 0105) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of  ACORD 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014027 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the Mayor or City Manager to execute the First Amendment to Tower Site 
Lease Agreement, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, between the City and Crown Castle PT, 
Inc., with respect to the wireless communication tower located at Flat Ridge B-AL-037-122. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 20 14. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 20 14. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I , Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Flat Ridge Tower Site Lease Agreement 



This instrument Prepnred By: 
Matthew W. Bmes, Esq. 
Burr & Fonnm, LLP 
420 20' Street North, Suite 3400 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 

Return to: 
Crown Castle 
1220 Augusta Drive, Suite 500 
Houston, Texas 77057 
Attention: PEP Department 

Cross Reference to: 

LR200908, Page 3520 
Jefferson County, Alabama Records 

STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 1 

AGREEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF FOURTH AMENDMENT TO 
TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT ("Memorandum") is made and entered into effective 
as of ,2014, by and between CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK (having a 
mailing address of 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213) ("Lessor"), and CROWN 
CASTLE PT INC., a Delaware corporation (having a mailing address of 2000 Corporate Drive, 
Canonsburg, Pennsylvania 153 17) ("Lessie"). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  ---------- 
WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee entered into that certain Tower Site Lease Agreement 

dated as of January 1,2009 (the "Lease"), which Lease was filed for record on July 27,2009 in 
Book LR200908, Page 3520 in the Ofice of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, 
covering certain real property together with easements for ingress, egress and utilities thereto, as 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the "Property"); 

WHEREAS, the Lease has an original term (including all extension terms) that will 
terminate on December 3 1,2033 (the "Original Term"); and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Lease to add additional renewal terms, and a 
right of first refusal related to the Property and as otherwise set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Lessor and Lessee hereby acknowledge and agree that the 
following accurately represents the Lease, as amended by that First Amendment to Tower Site 
Lease Agreement dated as of the date hereof: 

MEMORANDUM OF FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO TOWER SITE LEASE AGRlEEMENT 

BU# FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 
20166535 v2 



Lessor: 

Lessee: 

Property: 

Initial Lease Term: 

Expiration Date: 

Right to Extend or Renew: 

City of Mountain Brook, with a mailing address of 
56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

Crown Castle PT Inc., a Delaware corporation, 
having a mailing address of 2000 Corporate Drive, 
Canonsburg, Pennsylvania 153 17. 

The real property leased by Lessor to Lessee, 
together with easements for ingress and egress, is 
described in Exhibit "A" attached to this 
Memorandum and incorporated herein by this 
reference, 

For a term of two (2) years, beginning on January I ,  
2009. 

The first extension having been exercised, if not 
otherwise extended or renewed, the Lease shaIl 
expire on December 3 1,201 5. 

Lessee has the right to extend/renew the Lease as 
follows: nine (9) options to extend the Lease for a 
period of five (5) years each on the terms and 
conditions set forth in the Lease, as amended. If 
Lessee exercises all extensions/renewals, the final 
expiration of the Lease will occur on December 3 1, 
2053. 

Option to Purchase: No. 

Option to Lease Additional Property: Yes. 

Right of First Refusal: Yes. 

All of the terms, provisions, covenants and agreements contained in the Lease, as 
amended by that First Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement of even date herewith, are 
hereby incorporated herein by reference in the same manner and to the same extent as if all such 
terms, provisions, covenants and agreements were fully set forth herein. Lessor and Lessee 
ratify, confhn and adopt the Lease, as amended by that First Amendment to Tower Site Lease 
Agreement of even date herewith, as of the date hereof for purposes of compliance with Code of 
Alabama Section 35-4-6 (1975) (as amended) and acknowledge that there are no defaults under 
the Lease, as amended, or events or circumstances which, with the giving of notice or passage of 
time or both, would ripen into events of default. Except as otherwise expressly amended herein, 
all the terms and conditions of the Lease, as amended by that First Amendment to Tower Site 
Lease Agreement of even date herewith, shall remain and continue in full force and effect. This 
Agreement and Memorandum of First Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement will be 

BUU FLAT RIDGE 8-AL-037-122 
20166535 v2 



recorded in the applicable land records and is intended to provide notice to third parties of the 
Lease and any and all amendments thereto. The Lease and any and all amendments thereto 
contain terms and conditions in addition to those set forth in this Memorandum. This 
Memorandum is not intended to amend or modifL the terms and conditions of the Lease or of 
any amendments thereto. To the extent that the terms and conditions of this Memorandum differ 
from the terms and conditions of the Lease and/or any amendments thereto, the terms and 
conditions of the Lease and/or any amendments thereto shall govern and prevail. Capitalized 
terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning defined in the Lease and/or any 
amendments thereto. 

[Signatures Appear on the Following Pages] 

BU# FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 
20166535 v2 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and 
Memorandum of First Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement effective as of the date first 
written above. 

LESSOR: 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

ATTEST: 

By: Title: 

Title: 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
1 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby 
certify that whose name as of CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, an Alabama municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing 
Agreement and Memorandum of First Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement, and who is 
known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of such 
instrument, helshe, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and 
as the act of said municipal corporation on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and seal this the day of ,2014. 

FOTARIAL SEAL) 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

BU# FLAT RfDGE B-AL-037-122 
20166535 v2 



STATE OF 1 

COUNTY ) 

CROWN CASTLE PT INC., 
a Delaware corporation 

By: 
Name: 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that , whose name as of 
CROWN CASTLE PT INC., a Delaware corporation, is signed to the foregoing Agreement and 
Memorandum of First Amendment to Tower Site Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged 
before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the foregoing instrument, he/she 
with full authority, executed the same in hislher capacity as such o f i c k  v61untarily for and as 
the act of said corporation on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of 2014. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

[SEAL] 

BUU FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 
20166535 v2 



EXHIBIT A 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Northeast M of the Northwest % and 
the Northwest % of the Northeast % of Section 2, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, and the Southeast % of the Southwest % and the Southwest % of the 
Southeast % of Section 35, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, being more particularly described as follows: 

To find the point of beginning, commence at the northeast corner of the Northeast W 
of the Northwest % of Section 2, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; thence leaving 
said point and running along a tie line, South 38O16'53" East, 18.55 feet to a point 
and the true POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence running, South 1 1 O 0 8 ' 1 2 "  West, 33.76 
feet to a %" rebar found; Thence, South 70°05'57* West, 13.88 feet to a W rebar 
found; Thence, North 20'27'39' West, 21,ll feet to a W rebar found; Thence, 
North 46'19'54' West, 11.70 feet to a M" rebar found; Thence, North 29'38'38' 
West, 15.37 feet to a 34' rebar found; Thence, North 56'13'15' East, 44.62 feet to a 
W rebar found; Thence, South 11"52'57' East, 28.80 feet to a W rebar found and 
the true POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Said tract contains 0.0365 ACRES (1,590 square feet), more or less, as shown in a 
survey prepared for Crown Castle by POINT TO POINT LAND SURVEYORS, INC. dated 
February 16, 2009 and last revised on March 19,2009. 

Together with: 
20' Ingress~Egress Easement 

An easement situated in the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 2, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, and being more particularly described as 
fo!lows: 

Commence at the Northeast Comer of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 
2, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, thence with the east line of said quarter quarter section run 
North 87O35'29" West for a distance of 36.00 feet to the Point of Beginning of the centerline of 
an IngresstEgress Easement that lies 10.00 feet either side of said centerline as described herein; 
thence run North 02O24'31" East for a distance of 32.98 feet to a point; thence run North 
26O35'23" West for a distance of 8.33 feet to a point in south right-of-way line of Old Leeds 
Road, having a prescriptive right-of-way of 60 feet, and also being the terminus of easement. 

BU# FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 
20166535 v2 



STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 1 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT is made 
and entered into effective as of , 2014, by and between CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK (having a mailing address of 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 
35213) ("Lessor"), and CROWN CASTLE PT INC., a DeIaware corporation (having a maiIing 
address of 2000 Corporate Drive, Canonsburg, Pennsylvania 153 17) ("Lessee"). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  
-1 - - - - -3 -  

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee entered into that certain Tower Site Lease Agreement 
dated as of January 1,2009 (the "Lease"), which Lease was filed for record on July 27,2009 in 
Book LR200908, Page 3520 in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, 
covering certain real property together with easements for ingress, egress and utilities thereto, as 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto (the "Property"); 

WHEREAS, the Lease has an original term (including all extension terms) that will 
terminate on December 3 1,2033 (the "Original Term"); and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Lease to add additional renewal terms, and a 
right of first refusal related to the Property and as otherwise set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and 
agreements contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. AMENDMENTS. The Lease is hereby amended as follows: 

(a) Additional Renewal Terms, The first sentence of Section 4 of the Lease 
is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted in lieu thereof: 

Lessee shall have the right to extend the term of this Lease for eight (8) 
additional five (5) years terms and one (1) final three (3) year term 
(each a "Renewal Term"). 

If all such options to extend are exercised, then the final expiration of the Agreement 
shall occur on December 31,2053. Rent shall continue to increase at the commencement of each 
Renewal Term by Twenty Percent (20%) of the rent due in the immediately preceding Renewal 
Term. 

(b) Rieht of First Refusal. If Lessor receives an offer fkom any person or 
entity that owns or operates towers or other wireless telecommunications facilities or which 

20166502 v2 
BU# FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 



person or entity (including any affiliates of any such entity) is in the business of acquiring 
Lessor's interest in the Lease to purchase fee title, an easement, a lease, a license, or any other 
interest in the Property, any or a11 of Lessor's interest in the Lease including the rent or revenue 
derived therefrom, or any other interest in the Lease, or an option for any of the foregoing, 
Lessor shall provide written notice to Lessee of said offer ("Lessor's Notice"), and Lessee shall 
have a right of first refhsal to acquire such interest on the same terms and conditions, excluding 
any terms or conditions which are (i) not imposed in good faith or (ii) directly or indirectly 
designed to defeat or undermine Lessee's possessory or economic interest in the Property. 
Lessor's Notice shall include the prospective buyer's name, the purchase price andlor other 
consideration being offered, the other terms and conditions of the offer, the due diIigence period, 
and the proposed closing date. If Lessor's Notice shall provide for a due diligence period of less 
than sixty (60) days, then the due diligence period shall be extended to be sixty (60) days fiom 
exercise of the right of first reksal and closing shall occur no earlier than fifteen days thereafter. 
If Lessee does not exercise its right of first rehsal by written notice to Lessor given within thirty 
(30) days, Lessor may convey the property as described in Lessor's Notice. If Lessee decIines to 
exercise its right of first refisal, then the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and 
Lessee's right of first rehsal shall survive any such conveyance. Lessee shall have the right, at 
its sole discretion, to assign the right of first rehsal to any person or entity, either separate fiom 
an assignment of the Agreement or as part of an assignment of the Agreement. Such assignment 
may occur either prior to or after Lessee's receipt of Lessor's Notice and the assignment shall be 
effective upon written notice to Lessor. 

2. SIGNING BONUS. As additional consideration for the execution of this 
Amendment, Lessee shall pay to Lessor the sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred and No1100 
Dollars ($7,500.00) within sixty (60) days following the final execution of this Amendment by 
Lessee. 

3. MISCELLANEOUS. 

(a) Full Force and Effect. All of the terms, provisions, covenants and 
agreements contained in the Lease are hereby incorporated herein by reference in the same 
manner and to the same extent as if all such terms, provisions, covenants and agreements were 
fully set forth herein. Lessor and Lessee ratify, confirm and adopt the Lease as of the date hereof 
for purposes of compliance with Code of Alabama Section 35-4-6 (1975) (as amended) and 
acknowledge that there are no defaults under the Lease or events or circumstances which, with 
the giving of notice or passage of time or both, would ripen into events of default. Except as 
otherwise expressly amended herein, all the terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain and 
continue in f i l I  force and effect. In case of any inconsistency between the Lease and this 
Amendment, the terms and conditions of this Amendment shall govern and control. 

(b) Binding Effect. This Amendment shall be binding upon the heirs, legal 
representatives, successors and assigns of the parties. The parties shall execute and deliver such 
further and additional instruments, agreements and other documents as may be necessary to 
evidence or carry out the provisions of this Amendment. 

(c) IRS Form W-9. Lessor agrees to provide Lessee with a completed IRS 
Form W-9, or its equivalent, upon execution of this Amendment and at such other times as may 

20166502 v2 
BU# FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 



be reasonably requested by Lessee. In the event the Site is transferred, the succeeding Lessor 
shaIl have a duty at the time of such transfer to provide Lessee with a Change of Ownership 
Form as provided by Lessee and a completed IRS Form W-9, or its equivalent, and other related 
paper work to effect a transfer in rent to the new Lessor. Lessor's failure to provide the 1RS 
Form W-9 within thirty (30) days after Lessee's request shall be considered a default and Lessee 
may take any reasonable action necessary to comply with IRS regulations including, but not 
limited to, withholding applicable taxes fiom rent payments. 

(d) Revresentations and Warranties. Lessor represents and warrants that: 

(i) Lessor is duly authorized to and has the fill power and authority to 
enter into this Amendment and to perform all of Lessor's obligations under the Lease as 
amended hereby. 

(ii) Except as expressly identified in this Amendment, Lessor owns the 
Property free and clear of any mortgage, deed of trust, or other lien secured by any legal or 
beneficial interest in the Property, or any right of any individual, entity or governmental 
authority arising under an option, right of first refusal, lease, license, easement or other 
instrument other than any rights of Lessee arising under the Lease as amended hereby and the 
rights of utiIity providers under recorded easements. 

(iii) Upon Lessee's request, Lessor shall discharge and cause to be 
released or subordinated to Lessee's rights under the Lease as amended hereby any mortgage, 
deed of trust, lien or other encumbrance that may now or hereafter exist against the Property. 

(iv) Lessee is not currently in default under the Lease, and to Lessor's 
knowledge, no event or condition has occurred or presently exists which, with notice or the 
passage of time or both, would constitute a default by Lessee under the Lease. 

(v) Lessor agrees to execute and deliver such fbrther documents and 
provide such fiuther assurances as may be requested by Lessee to effect any release or cure 
referred to in this paragraph, carry out and evidence the full intent and purpose of the parties 
under the Lease as amended hereby, and ensure Lessee's continuous and uninterrupted use, 
possession and quiet enjoyment of the Property under the Lease as amended hereby. 

(e) Entire Agreement. This Amendment and the Lease sets forth the entire 
agreement between the parties reIated to the subject matter hereof. 

( Counternarts. This Amendment may be executed in two (2) or more 
counterparts and by facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which 
together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

[Signatures Appear on the Following Pages] 

20166502 v2 
BU# FLAT RIDGE 3-AL-037-122 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment to Tower 
Site Lease Agreement effective as of the date first written above. 

LESSOR: 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

ATTEST: BY 

By: Title: 

Title: 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
1 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby 
certify that whose name as of CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, an Alabama municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing First 
Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me 
on this day that, being informed of the contents of such instrument, helshe, as such officer and 
with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said municipal corporation 
on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and seal this the day of ,2014. 

WOTARIAL SEAL] 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

20166502 v2 
BU# FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 



CROWN CASTLE PT INC., 
a Delaware corporation 

By: 
Name: 

STATE OF ) 

COUNTY 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that , whose name as of 
CROWN CASTLE PT INC., a Delaware corporation, is signed to the foregoing First 
Amendment to Tower Site Lease and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day 
that, being informed of the contents of the foregoing instrument, he/she with hI1 authority, 
executed the same in hislher capacity as such officer voluntarily for and as the act of said 
corporation on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,2014. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 

[SEAL] 

20166502 vl  
BU# FLAT RIDGE B-AL-037-122 



EXHIBIT A 

All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Northeast % of the Northwest % and 
the Northwest % of the Northeast % of Section 2, Township 18 South, Range 2 
West, and the Southeast % of the Southwest % and the Southwest W of the 
Southeast 34 of Section 35, Township 17 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, 
Alabama, being more particularly described as follows; 

To find the point of beginning, commence at the northeast corner of the Northeast % 
of the Northwest % of Section 2, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; thence leaving 
said point and running along a tie line, South 38:16*53" East, 18.55 feet to a point 
and the hue POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence running, South 1 le08'1 2" West, 33.76 
feet to a 92" rebar found; Thence, South 70°05'57* West, 13.88 feet to a !4'' rebar 
found; Thence, North 20°27*39' West, 21,11 feet to a H" rebar found; Thence, 
North 46'19'54" West, 11.70 feet to a W rebar found; Thence, North 29'38'38' 
West, 15.37 feet to a !hW rebar found; Thence, North 56'13'15" East, 44.62 feet to a 
M' rebar found; Thence, South 11°52'57' East, 28.80 feet to a Ma rebar found and 
the true POINT OF BEGINNING, 

Said tract contains 0.0365 ACRES (1,590 square feet), more or less, as shown in a 
survey prepared for Crown Castle by POINT TO POINT LAND SURVEYORS, INC. dated 
February 16, 2009 and last revised on March 19,2009. 

Together with: 
20' IngressIEgress Easement 

An easement situated in the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 2, Township 
18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, and being more particulnrIy described as 
follows: 

Commence at the Northeast Corner of the Northeast Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 
2, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, thence with the east line of said quarter quarter section run 
North 87O35'29" West for a distance of 36.00 feet to the Point of Beginning of the centerline of 
an Ingress/Egress Easement that Iies 10.00 feet either side of said centerline as described herein; 
thence mn North 02'24'3 1" East for a distance of 32.98 feet to a point; thence run North 
26O35'23" West for a distance of 8.33 feet to a point in south right-of-way line of Old Leeds 
Road, having a prescriptive right-of-way of 60 feet, and also being the terminus of easement. 

20166502 v2 
BU# FLAT RIDGE B-At-037-122 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-028 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes the Mayor or City Manager to execute the Fourth Amendment to Tower Site 
Lease Agreement, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, between the City and STC Five, LLC, with 
respect to the wireless communication tower located at Mountain Brook Landfill (BU#874943). 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I , Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Mountain Brook Landfill Tower Site Lease Agreement 



This Instrument Prepared By: 
Matthew W. Bmes, Esq. 
Burr & Forman, LLP 
420 20Ih Street North, Suite 3400 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 

Return to: 
Crown Castle 
1220 Augusta Drive, Suite 500 
Houston, Texas 77057 
Attention: PEP Department 

Cross Reference to: 

Book 200603, Page 1674 
Jefferson County, Alabama Records 

STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 1 

AGWEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF FOURTH AMENDMENT TO 
TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT AND MEMORANDUM OF FOURTH AMENDMENT TO 
TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT ("Memorandum") is made and entered into effective 
as of ,2014, by and between CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK (having a 
mailing address of 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213) ("Lessor"), and STC FIVE 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, successor in interest to Sprint Spectrum Realty 
Company L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, successor in interest to Sprint Spectrum L.P., a 
Delaware limited partnership (having a mailing address of Sprint Contracts and Performance, 
Mailstop KSOPHTO 10 1-22650, 639 I Sprint Parkway, Overland Park, Kansas 6625 1-2650, 
Attention: Marion S. Crable, Manager) ("Tenant"). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  ---------- 
WHEREAS, Lessor and Tenant entered into that certain Tower Site Lease Agreement 

dated November 1, 1997 (the "OriginaI Lease"), covering certain real property together with 
easements for ingress, egress and utilities thereto, as described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto 
(the "Property"); 

WHEREAS, the Original Lease was amended by that certain First Amendment to Tower 
Site Lease Agreement of unknown name and date (the "First Amendment"); 

WHEREAS, the Original Lease was further amended by that certain Second Amendment 
to Tower Site Lease Agreement dated April 13,2000 (the "Second Amendment"); 

WHEFtEAS, the Original Lease was hrther amended by that certain Third Amendment 
to Tower Site Lease Agreement dated February 13, 2006, a memorandum of which was filed for 
record on February 16,2006, in Book 200603, Page 1674 in the Ofice of the Judge of Probate of 
Jefferson County, Alabama (the "Third Amendment," and together with the Original Lease, 
First Amendment, and Second Amendment, the "Lease"); 

20165958 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brook Landfill 



WHERIEAS, the Lease has an originaI term (including all extension terms) that will 
terminate on October 3 1,2022 (the "Original Term"); and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Lease to add additional renewal terms, and a 
right of first rehsal related to the Property and as otherwise set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Lessor and Tenant hereby acknowledge and agree that the 
following accurately represents the Lease, as amended by that Fourth Amendment to Tower Site 
Lease Agreement dated as of the date hereof: 

MEMORANDUM OF FOURTH AMENDMENT 
T O  TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT 

Lessor: 

Tenant: 

Property: 

Initial Lease Term: 

Expiration Date: 

Right to Extend or Renew: 

Option to Purchase: 

20165958 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brwk Landfill 

City of Mountain Brook, with a mailing address of 
56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 352 13. 

STC Five LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company, with a mailing address of Sprint 
Contracts and Performance, Mailstop 
KSOPHTOI 0 1-22650, 6391 Sprint Parkway, 
Overland Park, Kansas 6625 1-2650, Attention: 
Marion S. Crable, Manager. 

The real property leased by Lessor to Tenant, 
together with easements for ingress and egress, is 
described in Exhibit "A" attached to this 
Memorandum and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

For a term of ten (10) years, beginning on 
November 1, 1997. 

The first two (2) extensions having been exercised, 
if not otherwise extended or renewed, the Lease 
shall expire on October 3 1,20 17. 

Tenant has the right to extendirenew the Lease as 
follows: nine (9) options to extend the Lease for a 
period of five (5) years each on the terms and 
conditions set forth in the Lease, as amended. If 
Tenant exercises all extensions/renewals, the final 
expiration of the Lease will occur on October 3 1, 
2052. 

No. 



Option to Lease Additional Property: Yes. 

Right of First Refusal: Yes. 

All of the terms, provisions, covenants and agreements contained in the Lease, as 
amended by that Fourth Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement of even date herewith, are 
hereby incorporated herein by reference in the same manner and to the same extent as if a11 such 
terms, provisions, covenants and agreements were fully set forth herein. Lessor and Tenant 
ratify, confirm and adopt the Lease, as amended by that Fourth Amendment to Tower Site Lease 
Agreement of even date herewith, as of the date hereof for purposes of compliance with Code of 
Alabama Section 35-4-6 (1975) (as amended) and acknowledge that there are no defaults under 
the Lease, as amended, or events or circumstances which, with the giving of notice or passage of 
time or both, would ripen into events of default. Except as otherwise expressly amended herein, 
all the terms and conditions of the Lease, as amended by that Fourth Amendment to Tower Site 
Lease Agreement of even date herewith, shall remain and continue in full force and effect. This 
Agreement and Memorandum of Fourth Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement will be 
recorded in the applicable land records and is intended to provide notice to third parties of the 
Lease and any and a11 amendments thereto. The Lease and any and all amendments thereto 
contain terms and conditions in addition to those set forth in this Memorandum. This 
Memorandum is not intended to amend or modify the terms and conditions of the Lease or of 
any amendments thereto. To the extent that the terms and conditions of this Memorandum differ 
from the terms and conditions of the Lease andor any amendments thereto, the terms and 
conditions of the Lease and/or any amendments thereto shall govern and prevail. Capitalized 
terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning defined in the Lease and/or any 
amendments thereto. 

[Signatures Appear on the Foliowing Pages] 

20165958 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Bmok Landfill 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement and 
Memorandum of Fourth Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement effective as of the date first 
written above. 

LESSOR: 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

ATTEST: BY 

By: Title: 

Title: 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
1 

JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby 
cedi@ that whose name as of CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, an Alabama municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing 
Agreement and Memorandum of Fourth Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement, and who 
is-known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed-of the contents of 
such instrument, he/she, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for 
and as the act of said municipal corporation on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and seal this the day of ,2014. 

FOTARIAL SEAL] 

20165958 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Bmok Landtill 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 



TENANT: 

STC FIVE LLC, 
a Delaware Iimited liability company 

By: Global Signal Acquisitions I1 LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, 
its Attorney in Fact 

By: (SEAL) 
Name: 
Its: 

STATE OF 1 

COUNTY OF 1 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary PubIic in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that, , whose name as of 
GLOBAL SIGNAL ACQUISITIONS 11 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as 
Attorney in Fact of STC FIVE LLC, a Delaware limited liability company,-has signed the 
foregoing Agreement and Memorandum of Fourth Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement 
and who is known to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the 
contents of the foregoing instrument, helshe with full authority, executed the same voluntarily 
for and as the act of said Iimited Iiability company on the day the same bears date, 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,2014. 

[NOTARIAL SEAL] 

20165958 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brook Landfill 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 



EXPANDED LEASE PREMISES 

MISPING LEASE mm (am BOOK ma. PAGE a47 )  (SUPPUEII 
By CLIENT) 

A pawf of Imd ShmteU in the Souihaomt Ounrtar of tha Sbulhlud Q ~ a t t t t  d 
W n  14. T- 11 South, R o 2 Wsrt Huntrvllr MrMlan, Joffsrron 
Courfy. FSakrna. bchn mom port%ly dasulbsd es fdlo*r 

Cammmca at th, N&My eamrr 04 M & Wodt 2. Cohoba Ookr Cmi Soebr or 
m W d  in Box 149' Pegs 21 in ths Olbe d th. Judgo at hbotm. 
$11111~ County. &abema, a M  pdnl aloo bring acl h e  We+ *gM sf woy lin. 
d h-h No. G D ;  thama run North 5444'W Ead olon~ aold NWbly rlgbt 
of w y  Ih d Intomtote No. 4% lor a di.tmer of 81- real; thence and 
kdt ond mn Hndh 5415.28' W a d  far a datum or 72.11 Iwl h tha WIW OF 
BWNNQf6; Mat ongk leR and tun SouU, 8Wl'Wg W& far a dMmca of 
30.00 led to o polnt m L o  Prrtrtfy Ilr# of t lu 9YI l / 4  d tho SE 1/4 of rdd 
Smctlan 14: t h e e  aqlr ylht ond nm FWth 0418'tI" West ow W 1/4-1/4 
R e  for o dtrtnnm d 75M I& fhmc. on* rf#d ond run Morth ng4t'W. 
M for o cll8h'w OI S0.M) fat;  thmoe an$+ and mn SPuth OO'tB'll' 
E d  for a din tma d 75W Int to Uu WlNT $!BEEINNlHb. 
bntoin'hg 3.750.0 Squom Fesl (0.09 km} mafa os lor#. 

MISTING (DEW BOOK 9713, PMfE W?) (9UPPLIgD BY 
c-1 
hstdpof bnd W f M h  rldlhformnur and uWtln JlwW hth4Smtheat 
Qwrtu d %Urn 14. Tovndilp 18 SouU, Ronqa 2 Wmol, Hun- Mrrldbn, 
&Itanan Carnty, Alobrmo, bdng 20 fwt tcr atha a h  of (he loUawlg darulbd 
QontcrlRa: 

bmmau ot bm Wmrly wrnu d bt I, el& 2. Csr#bo Ook M k b r  am 
.cconlrd In U q  Book 140, Paw 21 A lhr W k s  d tha Judge of hbde.  
JIIIWM Ccunty, AaWmo. mid pcM d r o  balng en tho M a r l y  right d w y  Ilna 
d hlmEot4 Na. 4601 UIIMI wn NOIUl 3U443ZL b a t  O ~ M Q  sold 6 g M  
of wy 81\4 61 Intrrrlal. Ha 458 for a dhfnncc a( 618.80 (+re UI.ner md 
Wt on4 run llarUI W15'2lV Ww fw a Utlanca er 72.1 1 f w e  thancr, o q k  *n 
and nw Ssuh W41'59' West for or ddktonm d b 8 t  Ihmm anpla right 
and M North Wla'f 1' W d  101 0 d r b  of 3760 ld to the WWI W 
EIIlWJINO; bunco o r q k  MI and nn SwVl W47'59' Wt for o dlalansr of 
6hTJ fr& tha-a  In MandmSDuUl 4.340'89. W d  fwodrlonamd 
1 ~ 3  fed o( lo* ~ Y n l  of ~ d u ~ t O U M c T Q h t h ~ a ~ s d  
DUO0 f.t and a CMfml angle mlll'w t h m r  cmllrrw along tha o n  of sdd 
NNO for o m n m  of 106.63 f& to tkr Polnt d Tangsncy b a r s 4  thtncr 
canbw Hwth se21'az' b d  o h g  o IM tangawl to bd dmodbad cuwa fm a 
&tam@ af 34.12 fed to thr PoM d Cuwtun d o curve b h tatt h&g o 
rodhu d %OD Essl ond a cmbd Ir of P1'111'37*; U w m  contlnve ahrg tho 
avo of a auvr for o a- & 3 . ~ 5  tart tb Uls P ~ W  of ~angmay -r: 
i h a a  canlbur Sauth 2Q12'21' wt obng 0 nne tongont lo Id h l b d  
c u m  fm a d h b w  of 4 D l s d  f e d  mom ff  baa to o pdnt on the d h m  d 
Eprt S W  to SO foot 661mM dght d way] and % heD(DIMG PUN1 a1 thk 
utntodno. 

CmRAL 8IGNAL UWB ARIU 

 pad d londrttudrd h LMbuthdQuorlad lh Muth.oltOuartrd 
Ssctlon 14. To*M)r;p 18 Soulh. Ronpr 2 Wad, Jdlcnon County, luobama, baing 
m m  pdh!ol)y d v ~ d k d  os folbwr. 

bmmnc. ot th nathrost tornr of Ld 4 Bkdk 7. Catmh Oob h t  Ssolor 
os maardrd h Uap Bwk t4B, Paw 21 In U f h  of the Judge d Pmbotr, 
M a r -  Comb. Mobma, d d  poht dm bdnp on Uu n d h - d u b  
rlght-of-woy llm d I n t s W  No. Vunce N 3W44'32' E: dong .dd 
ndhrsdarly rlght-#--my Bna a dbtanae of BtlLM I4.t to a pohk thsnu 
l e d q  add rlqM-of- Ihs N %1S828* W a dldoncm d 72.11 fut to a 5m 
cappad raba mI ( S W  U 19755)i thoncr 9 8847'17. W lor a dImlmer of S.M 
/set to Q 5/8' copad re&&? mht (W LS 19753) and th. Pdnt of B*, 
t h a m  S WM'45 E for a &doma or 1E.M Isst to o 5/6' c o r n  &or sat 
(SMW I5 19753); thncr S #47'16. W for or ddltmca d 43.m fad ta o S/d 
copped r e k  ut (SUN L8 14163)i than- H 0012'43' W fsr u dkconcs ol 
vaoo f n t  to o s/B' mba m# (SW) LS ~9753): tksnaa H 8947'17. E 
lor a dktonar af 4342 tlut to ttu Pdnt of Bahning. b i d  d a m  panl of 
land COnbalhc &a2 a s m .  mm of lo* 

20165958 v2 
BU# 874943. Mountain Bmok landfill 



EXPANDED LEASE PREMISES 

Commawe at the jns#tbuat tamer oP Lot 8, B k k  2, Cbka Find m~br 
ol; twnrded h Uap Bo;obr 140@ Page 21 h the Office 07 b+ 4t#cl@e sf Ft#b&& 
duffam CaIPnty, Alabama, raid paint o l r ~  being on t b  rmtfwsaw 
rip-a f -wqy  One of Lrttsddte Wa 4 s ;  hanaa H W44'32? E otrmg m i d  
mrtftwtstedy mM--af-wy tine o dhtanm d BfBOO tce2 X;cr a pdnk thmcil 
W p g  sdd dght-d-cty Mna N 5916'28" W rr dktursas d 72.1 l 14a k 6 $fig 
mppud mbar ast (SW CS 197$3); theme S ~ + 7 " 7 '  W R r  a d W u m  af 
5O.Ib0 fed to a 3m robur f m d ;  t h m a  N W15%a Itf fw .a biptonae & 3m 
feet to a 5/8" cctpphd mbm 80f (sMW LS 19763) QllZl th9 Pal& uf Beghntng of 
w ~ r - q ~ E p a m  G H J ~  bmce S 88t44*3tm W for o dPrXlanes d 5.00 f M  
to a 5b' napped tuber sd (SMW LS WW; thence M WIZ'Gw W far u 
&vbncfe od 13.43 f& b a 5/Ltm d x v  sat (SAW IS 19753); hrmw N 
6CRHf4lm E far a dbbnce of 5.05 fagt h u 6/&" cuppad mbr & (SMY LS 
lB?S3x thwm S WI529' E lor a dlnltsnts at !as6 kcr ta the m t  d 
&@nhg. Sald dwkerikd m o n k  ~ o n b h  89.3 quare fed, more or laas 

20165958 v2 
BUU 874943. Mountnin Brook Landfill 





STATE OF ALABAMA 1 

COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 1 

FOURTH AMENDMENT TO TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO TOWER SITE LEASE AGREEMENT is made 
and entered into effective as of , 2014, by and between CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK (having a mailing address of 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 
35213) ("Lessor"), and STC FIVlE LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, successor in 
interest to Sprint Spectrum Realty Company L.P., a Delaware limited partnership, successor in 
interest to Sprint Spectrum L,P,, a Delaware limited partnership (having a mailing address of 
Sprint Contracts and Performance, Mailstop KSOPHT0 1 01 -Z2650, 639 1 Sprint Parkway, a 

Overland Park, Kansas 6625 1-2650, Attention: Marion S. Crable, Manager) ("Tenant"). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  ---------- 
WHEREAS, Lessor and Tenant entered into that certain Tower Site Lease Agreement 

dated November 1, 1997 (the "Original Lease"), covering certain real property together with 
easements for ingress, egress and utilities thereto, as described in Exhibit "A9' attached hereto 
(the "Property"); 

WHEREAS, the Original Lease was amended by that certain First 'Amendment to Tower 
Site Lease Agreement of unknown name and date (the "First Amendment"); 

WHEREAS, the Original Lease was fluher amended by that certain Second Amendment 
to Tower Site Lease Agreement dated April 13,2000 (the "Second Amendment"); 

WHEREAS, the Original Lease was further amended by that certain Third Amendment 
to Tower Site Lease Agreement dated February 13,2006, a memorandum of which was filed for 
record on February 16,2006, in Book 200603, Page 1674 in the Office of the Judge of Probate of 
Jefferson County, Alabama (the "Third Amendment," and together with the Original Lease, 
First Amendment, and Second Amendment, the "Lease"); 

WHEREAS, the Lease has an original term (including all extension terms) that will 
terminate on October 3 1,2022 (the "Original Term"); and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Lease to add additional renewal terms, and a 
right of first reksal related to the Property and as otherwise set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and 
agreements contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. AMENDMENTS. The Lease is hereby amended as follows: 

20165976 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brook Landfill 



(a) Additional Renewal Terms. The first sentence of Section 4 of the Lease 
is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following is substituted in lieu thereof: 

Tenant shall have the right to extend the term of this Lease for nine (9) 
additional five (5) years terms (each a "Renewal Term"). 

If all such options to extend are exercised, then the final expiration of the Agreement 
shall occur on October 3 1,2052. Rent shall continue to increase at the commencement of each 
Renewal Term by Twenty Percent (20%) of the rent due in the immediately preceding Renewal 
Term. 

(b) Right of First Refusal. If Lessor receives an offer fkom any person or 
entity that owns or operates towers or other wireless telecommunications facilities or which 
person or entity (including any affiliates of any such entity) is in the business of acquiring 
Lessor's interest in the Lease to purchase fee title, an easement, a lease, a license, or any other 
interest in the Property, any or all of Lessor's interest in the Lease including the rent or revenue 
derived therefrom, or any other interest in the Lease, or an option for any of the foregoing, 
Lessor shall provide written notice to Tenant of said offer ("Lessor's Notice"), and Tenant shall 
have a right of first refusal to acquire such interest on the same terms and conditions, excluding 
any terms or conditions which are (i) not imposed in good faith or (ii) directly or indirectly 
designed to defeat or undermine Tenant's possessory or economic interest in the Property. 
Lessor's Notice shall include the prospective buyer's name, the purchase price andlor other 
consideration being offered, the other terms and conditions of the offer, the due diligence period, 
and the proposed closing date. If Lessor's Notice shall provide for a due diIigence period of less 
than sixty (60) days, then the due diligence period shall be extended to be sixty (60) days from 
exercise of the right of first refusal and closing shall occur no earlier than fifteen days thereafter. 
If Tenant does not exercise its right of first refusal by written notice to Lessor given within thirty 
(30) days, Lessor may convey the property as described in Lessor's Notice. If Tenant declines to 
exercise its right of first refbsal, then the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and 
Tenant's right of first rehsal shall survive any such conveyance. Tenant shall have the right, at 
its soIe discretion, to assign the right of first rehsal to any person or entity, either separate from 
an assignment of the Agreement or as part of an assignment of the Agreement. Such assignment 
may occur either prior to or after Tenant's receipt of Lessor's Notice and the assignment shall be 
effective upon written notice to Lessor. 

(c) Notice. The Lease is hereby amended to reflect the following notice 
address for Tenant: 

Sprint Contracts and Performance 
MaiIstop KSOPHTO 10 1-22650 
6391 Sprint Parkway 
Overland Park, Kansas 6625 1-2650 
Attention: Marion S. CrabIe, Manager 

and to: 

20165976 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain B m k  Landfill 



Crown Castle USA Inc. 
E. Blake Hawk, General Counsel 
Attention: Legal Department 
2000 Corporate Drive 
Canonsburg, Pennsylvania 153 17 

(d) Option for Additional Ground Space. Tenant shall have the right and 
option (the "Option"), exercisable at any time, and from time to time, following the execution of 
this Amendment, to amend the Lease for no additional consideration except as provided herein, 
to include up to an additional Five Thousand (5,000) square feet immediately adjacent to the 
Property in a location mutually agreeable to Lessor and Tenant (the "Additional Lease Area"), 
Tenant may conduct any reasonable due diligence activities on the Additional Lease Area at any 
time af€er fill execution of this Amendment, If Tenant elects to exercise the Option, after full 
execution of the Additional Lease Area Documents (as defined below), Tenant shall pay the 
same rent per square foot for the Additional Lease Area as the rent paid per square foot by 
Tenant for the existing lease area at the time of fill execution of the Additional Lease Area 
Documents. The rent for the Additional Lease Area shall increase in the same manner as the rent 
increases for the existing lease area, Tenant may exercise the Option by providing written notice 
to Lessor at any time; provided, however, that following Tenant's delivery of notice to Lessor, 
Tenant may at any time prior to full execution of the Additional Lease Area Documents 
withdraw its election to exercise the Option if Tenant discovers or obtains any information of 
any nature regarding the Additional Lease Area which Tenant determines to be unfavorable in its 
sole discretion. Within sixty (60) days after Tenant's exercise of the Option, Lessor agrees to 
execute and deliver an amendment to the Lease, a memorandum of amendment (each of which 
may include a metes and bounds description of the Additional Lease Area), and any other 
documents necessary to grant and record Tenant's interest in the Additional Lease Area 
("Additional Lease Area Documents"). 

(e) Definitions. Any reference to "Sprint Spectrum L.P." or "SSLP" in the 
Lease shall be deemed to refer to Tenant, and any reference to "Owner" in the Lease shall be 
deemed to refer to Lessor herein. 

2. SIGNING BONUS. As additional consideration for the execution of this 
Amendment, Tenant shall pay to Lessor the sum of Seven Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 
Dollars ($7,500.00) within sixty (60) days following the final execution of this Amendment by 
Tenant. 

3. MISCELLANEOUS. 

(a) Full Force and Effect. All of the terms, provisions, covenants and 
agreements contained in the Lease are hereby incorporated herein by reference in the same 
manner and to the same extent as if a11 such terms, provisions, covenants and agreements were 
fully set forth herein, Lessor and Tenant ratify, confirm and adopt the Lease as of the date hereof 
for purposes of compliance with Code of Alabama Section 35-4-6 (1975) (as amended) and 
acknowledge that there are no defaults under the Lease or events or circumstances which, with 
the giving of notice or passage of time or both, would ripen into events of default. Except as 
otherwise expressly amended herein, all the terms and conditions of the Lease shall remain and 

20165976 vZ 
BU# 874943, Mountain B ~ l i  L ~ d f i l l  



continue in full force and effect. In case of any inconsistency between the Lease and this 
Amendment, the terms and conditions of this Amendment shall govern and control. 

(b) Binding Effect. This Amendment shall be binding upon the heirs, legat 
representatives, successors and assigns of the parties. The parties shall execute and deliver such 
further and additional instruments, agreements and other documents as may be necessary to 
evidence or carry out the provisions of this Amendment. 

(c) IRS Form W-9. Lessor agrees to provide Tenant with a completed IRS 
Form W-9, or its equivalent, upon execution of this Amendment and at such other times as may 
be reasonably requested by Tenant. In the event the Site is transferred, the succeeding Lessor 
shall have a duty at the time of such transfer to provide Tenant with a Change of Ownership 
Form as provided by Tenant and a completed IRS Form W-9, or its equivalent, and other related 
paper work to effect a transfer in rent to the new Lessor. Lessor's failure to provide the IRS 
Form W-9 within thirty (30) days after Tenant's request shalI be considered a default and Tenant 
may take any reasonable action necessary to comply with IRS regulations including, but not 
limited to, withholding applicable taxes ftom rent payments. 

(d) Representations and Warranties. Lessor represents and warrants that: 

(i) Lessor is duly authorized to and has the full power and authority to 
enter into this Amendment and to perform all of Lessor's obligations under the Lease as 
amended hereby. 

(ii) Except as expressly identified in this Amendment, Lessor owns the 
Property free and clear of any mortgage, deed of trust, or other lien secured by any legal or 
beneficial interest in the Property, or any right of any individual, entity or governmental 
authority arising under an option, right of first refusal, lease, license, easement or other 
instrument other than any rights of Tenant arising under the Lease as amended hereby and the 
rights of utility providers under recorded easements. 

(iii) Upon Tenant's request, Lessor shalI discharge and cause to be 
released or subordinated to Tenant's rights under the Lease as amended hereby) any mortgage, 
deed of trust, lien or other encumbrance that may now or hereafter exist against the Property. 

(iv) Tenant is not currently in defauIt under the Lease, and to Lessor's 
knowledge, no event or condition has occurred or presently exists which, with notice or the 
passage of time or both, would constitute a default by Tenant under the Lease. 

(v) Lessor agrees to execute and deliver such further documents and 
provide such further assurances as may be requested by Tenant to effect any release or cure 
referred to in this paragraph, carry out and evidence the full intent and purpose of the parties 
under the Lease as amended hereby, and ensure Tenant's continuous and uninterrupted use, 
possession and quiet enjoyment of the Property under the Lease as amended hereby. 

(e) Entire Agreement. This Amendment and the Lease sets forth the entire 
agreement between the parties related to the subject matter hereof. 

20165976 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brook Landfill 



(f) Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in two (2) or more 
counterparts and by facsimile, each of which shall be deemed an original, but a11 of which 
together shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

[Signatures Appear on the Following Pages] 

20165976 vZ 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brook h d t i l l  



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Fourth Amendment to 
Tower Site Lease Agreement effective as of the date first written above. 

LESSOR: 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

ATTEST: 

By: Title: 

Title: 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
1 

JEFFEFGON COUNTY ) 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said State and County, hereby - 
certify that wiose name as of CITY OF 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, an Alabama municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing Fourth 
Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement, and who is known to me, acknowledged before me 
on this day that, being informed of the contents of such instrument, helshe, as such officer and 
with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said municipal corporation 
on the day the s&e bears date. 

Given under my hand and seal this the day of ,2014. 

NOTARIAL SEAL] 

20165976 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brook Landfill 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 



TENANT: 

STC FIVE LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company 

By: Global Signal Acquisitions I1 LLC, 
a Delaware limited liability company, 
its Attorney in Fact 

By: (SEAL) 
Name: 

STATE OF 1 

COUNTY OF 1 

I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby - 
certify that, , whose name as of 
GLOBAL SIGNAL ACQUISITIONS I1 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as 
Attorney in Fact of STC FIVE LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, has signed the 
foregoing Fourth Amendment to Tower Site Lease Agreement and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the foregoing 
instrument, he/she with f i l l  authority, executed the same voIuntarily for and as the act of said 
limited liability company on the day the same bears date. 

Given under my hand and official seal this day of ,2014. 

POTARIAL SEAL] 

20165976 v2 
BU# 874943. Mounhin Brook Landfill 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 



EXHIBIT A 
EXPANDED LEASE PREMISES 

=STING tEAB& AREA ( D m  BOOK BnS. PAGE 8247) (SUPPUED 
CLIEHT) 

A paeJ at I d  JLuoba in the Swthwmt Owr(rr of the Soulhoasl Ouurter d 
Sntbn 14, 18 Fwh, 1 o 2 Wad, Hunlrvllr Mu#lan, & H e w n  
Cody ,  &bema, k h g  nwra partk8dy dQerBsd as fdlsrr 

CMmner at the PE'wiycomrr ot M @,Back2  M a b o  Oolu Fht Slel#or 
noordrd in Map Bor 749, Pega 21 In Uw hr at d th.u@s at Wrn. 
M a n o n  County, AIdwna. pow pdnl oloD b&g m tk0 W'dy dgM at uay llrn 
cl htr*tok No. 45B; thema nm HorUl M'S' bst along rokl W4y dght 
af my llns d Intarntote No. 4SD for a alrtma d 6 1 W  fwt; thaea  0*1 
kn and run )lor& SP'15.W W s d  fff  a ~~ of 72.11 1bmi h tha POW OF 

hem mgk bR and rn SouUI BP41'MD W for a dlstmcr of 
50.W f d  to a polnt m th. W y  tlnr of Uu SYY 1/4 d L a  SE 1/4 of wld 
k c t l ~  1e thMa onplr @ht cnd nn IWh M1Ct1' W alonp W 114-1/4 
I h o  lor a dmbnra of 76M fnt: M e n  mpk &d end run HorUl 8841'JD0 
~ f o ? O ~ U f 5 ~ f & t h r # # ~  MdNUfwthWt8'11' 
E d  furs #It- d 75.00 rsvC(a thr- %!BEtMlHt. 
Contnining &MO,O Squm Fed (0.09 Acm} m a  ar krr. 

WSVNG EMWENT @&BD BOOK ma, P m  a471 (BUPPLlgD SY 
c=1 
A stdp of bd 40 id R wldlh lor mourn and rttlRIa Jtwtd h L o  S d b a d  
Qwrtw ol S d a n  14, T o w  18 South, Raw 2 Wmd, Hunt.vslr Yrnrldbn, 
Jalbmon Catmu, Ateb~labrma. I$nq 1Q f u t  to atha skh at tho fdbwfng dwdW 
4X4nt#lk 

Csmnanu at bhr Wmrly w r n u d I d t U , ~ L C d t & a  bda Fht Sctwos 
m w d r d  in Uop Bsok 149. Page 21 k Olr afflcs d the Judge d Pmhb, 
Mfmm Ccunty. Uowmo. .ow pdnl dro lnhg on the Waly right d wy Rnr 
d h h t a t m  No. 4681 thmor wn NorU, tOU'SC Ewt alow d d  W e  dght 
af ray #fw d Intmhta Wa 468 far a W n a  of 61B.80 BOwk Vwnce and 
Wt and fun Ebr(b 5W1S1Z# Wont far o 6 i  al72t l  fwt; t b  an#e I& 
a n d ~ n S s u t h W 4 l * ~ ' ~ k , t f ~ o r a ~ d m ~ m n r a a o n p l e ~  
ond M North Wla'tl* W d  for o dbbnsr al 37& Id lo tho POW W 
BEGMNHd; t h e w  a q l r  MI afid nn SwUl W47'M' Wmt fw o dldlrtmr ol 
-13 faat; thmcs a h bR Md nm south #40'rn9 Wnt tar 0 dltlonc8 d 
1 2 8 3 a f d b U e ~ ~ f l c l ~ v v d h n a d r o u v ~ l o h ~ t h ~ c & r d  
SROO fnt md a wmtml onpk 6748'w thacr d n w  dong tha ore a I  sdd 
ouum for o Qatan- of IORBj foot to tho Pdnt d Tonpncy h m m l ;  UUKl 
mlmur Nadh aBzl'OZ* Wad dong o I n 6  tanpent to )mt dsscdbed c u ~ s  for m 
cH.tma of 31.12 f e d  to tha PaM dOlnvotun d a ruwr lo (ho I& bvhg a  
mdhu d EQAO tea und a errW la ol Bl'fB'S7'i UMmr ovntlnum O ~ M  UH 
am of a o ~  far a d3.u 1.a to b o  ~ d n t  of Tangmy -l: 
thwca C O ~ & W  Sadh 2@22'2ig W a C  obnp a h e  tongent b k t  d w m d  
c w * . I a o c h t m u o t ~ g R O b f ~ m e n w ~ t o o p d n t m I h ~ ~ k . d  
&a !Wd (a 30 loat ddleoM rlgM al uoy) and the DIW W t  d tm 
otntarlinr, 

CIABAL BIQW ARM 

A p o d  d l o d  Jbrdrd Lr Uw b u t h a d  Omrb of Ulr Sadwat  0wrt.r ot 
Sectbn 14, Ta*ruhip 18 M. Ranga 2 Wed, Jdfcnon County, & h a ,  bing 
morr porl i~~tdy drmnlbd as fotbw 

bm-a ot th nathood c ~ m r  d Ld 4 BbcL 3. Cahobo W m  f h t  Sst ta  
or rrDwda0 In Map U 140, P a p  21 &I tha Wflw of the Judge d Pmbot*, 
Merron bmv. Akbomo. rdd p o M  &a bdng m th narth*.clulv 
right-d-vay Pn ol tnbrctotr No. a; thmsm t4 3U44'3ZC E: do- sold 
n h r s l a t l y  fl#-ol-xoy Unm o dbbnoe 01 B18.80 l e d  Co o pohl; V#rw 
larvlrp add rlpM-ol-wy Ihr N W15*28' W a dlctarto d 7211 fart la o S/iV 
tappsd mbar at (SIN LS 19753); Itcaw 3 W47@1Y W Icr a dobm d 198 
kui Lo a Sj4. capped naar e@t (SAW UI 19751) and th. Pdnt of 0- 
thsnos 6 WOB'45 E far a dktonco of IROO feat ta o 5/B' capped tubor 14 
(SW LS 19753)$ thncr S 80'47'18' W f e  o d b b u  of 43.m f e d  b o 5/# 
copped nba ut (SUW L8 1S763)1 thmso M m12'4f  W tar CI dktonca ol 
lam h a t  to o s/8' mbar rot (SUW U 1975s); thrrrm U 8g47'17' E; 
for a dhtmoa ol 43m t1..1 to th Pdnt of Ba&n;ng. h r d  d a m  p d  d 
hnd ca(dh. 6.02 mums. rn ar k u  

20165976 v2 
BUI 874943, Mountain Bmok Landfill 



EXPANDED LEASE PREMISES 

M e a s m n 4  @#uoWd In the 5am-a Warbar d thrr %uthenst Quarter al 
S d M  14, I c e  10 8outh, Range 2 We& Jeffemrwr Comb, Nabma, bdng 
rnwa paflcula@ bswtihd ws Fekwrs: 

bmmrmcs ot thd rWQfhbdaC: W r  of Lot 8, Block Z C a h h  lkrb Fkst Sebr  
03 wardeb in hhp 18oak 14B, Polgs 21 h the Ornee 91 the crt Wtrh 
Jdfmm Caurrty, Mat#ma, wfd p& alsp behg on tha rrwttnuww 
d@t--aC-wy Cine af htaMlHe W a  450; therwa N WU'32' E almg said 
mrttwrksCWy f5gtt-of-wuy itne a dbtenm d 91a30 frst b & pink thmctr 
W n g  said hht-d-ay the N 55615'28" W .a dEgtara~a Qf 7'2.1 t f& b d 5fiW 
cappad rub<# wt (SMW 4.S 10793); t h m e  S 0W+7'1;tC YF kr u ilktam af 
50.W feet ta Q 3m rrhr f m d ;  thema N W'15'28" W Ctf a dhtmab # 3W 
feat to a 5fl' capped mbw @at (SMw IS 19763) curd ths mint uf Baghning ol; 
M Mr-IEpss Eaaarnwrt: Unnee S #'4+*31" W for a mmrib at &00 fed 
to a 5)11' capped mbur sd {SMW LS t$m; thmw M Wt2'43' W for a 

~4 13.M fmt ta a 518' capped rdxw & (SIN CLS 19753b tiiwncs bl 
~D'Ba"41~ E i W  u &&nst of 5.05 fa& b a 45)&" cupped rebar d ( S W  
t- t h ~  S Wl5;"28' E 16r a deaRoncs al '14.26 feet to rn Point d 
&gCnrrkg. Said hWl$L#jd @@Wmad sonbins B9.3 square f e d ,  more gr I- 

20165976 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Brook Landfill 



EXPANDED LEASE PREMISES 

20165976 v2 
BU# 874943, Mountain Bmok LandRIl 



RESOLUTION NO. 2012-029 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that 
the City Council hereby recommends to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board, 
the issuance of a 240 - Non-Profit Tax Exempt License to The Preschool Partners Foundation 
(trade name The Food Truck Round Up) for its April 26,2014 fundraising event to be held in the 
parking lot of 780 Brookwood Village, Mountain Brook, Alabama. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLWD that the City Clerk is hereby instructed to forward a 
copy of this resolution to the State of Alabama, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 201 4. 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

APPROVED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby 
certify the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook at its meeting held on March 10,2012, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

Steven Boone, City Clerk 

Preschool Partners ABC License 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
( ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD 

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION 
Confirmation Number: 20140307100517349 

Type License: 240 - NON-PROFIT TAX EXEMPT 

Type License: 

Trade Name: 2014 FOOD TRUCK ROUND UP 

State: $0.00 County: $0.00 

State: County: 

Filing Fee: $0.00 

Applicant: PRESCHOOL PARTNERS FOUNDATION Transfer Fee: 

Location Address: PARKING LOT OF 780 BROOKWOOD VILLAGE MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35209 

MaiIing Address: 3637 MONTROSE RD BIRMINGHAM, AL 3521 3 

County: JEFFERSON Tobacco sales: NO Tobacco Vending Machines: 

Sale of Products Containing Ephedrine: NO Type Ownership: CORPORATION 
Book, Page, or Document info: LR200804,26452 Do you sell Draft Beer: 

Date Incorporated: 0411 012008 State incorporated: AL County Incorporo ted: JEFFEERSON 

Date of Authority: 0411012008 Alabama State Sales Tax ID: N/A 

Name: Title: Date and Place of Birth: Residence Address: 

Has applicant complied with financial responsibility ABC RR 20-X-5-.l4? YES 
Does ABC have any actions pending against the current licensee? NO 
Has anyone, including manager or applicant, had a FederallState permit or license suspended or revoked? NO 
Has a liquor, wine, malt or brewed license for these premises ever been denied, suspended, or revoked? NO 
Are the applicant(s) named above, the only person(s), in any manner interested in the business sought to be 
licensed? YES 
Are any of the applicants, whether individual, member of a partnership or association, or officers and 
directors of cooperation itself, in any manner monetarily interested, either directly or indirectly, in the profits 
of any other class of business regulated under authority of this act? NO 
Does applicant own or control, directly or indirectly, hold lien against any real or personal property which is 
rented, leased or used in the conduct of business by the holder of any vinous, malt or brewed beverage, or 
distilled liquors permit or license issued under authority of this act? NO 
Is applicant receiving, either directly or indirectly, any loan, credit, money, or the equivalent thereof from or 
through a subsidiary or affiliate or other licensee, or from any firm, association or corporation operating 
under or regulated by the authority of this act? NO 

ELLA HAMMITER 
9108837 - AL 

ALLENE NEIGHBORS 
681 5255 - AL 

Contact Person: ALLENE NEIGHBORS 
Business Phone: 205-951-51 57 
Fax: 205-951 -5131 

PREVIOUS LICENSE INFORMATION: 
Trade Name: 
Applicant: 

Home Phone: 205-936-3754 
CeII Phone: 205-936-3754 
E-mail: ALLENE.NEIGHBORS@GMAIL.COM 

752 EUCLID AVE 
MOUNTAIN BROOK. AL 3521 3 

15 MONTEVALLO LN 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35213 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

DIRECTOR OF 
DMLOPMENT 

Previous License Number(s) 
License 1 : 
License 2: 

811964 
OPELIKA. AL 

07/18/1982 
BIRMINGHAMAL 



I STATE OF ALABAMA 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD ' 

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION 
Confirmation Number: 201403071 0051 7349 

If applicant is leasing the property, is a copy of the lease agreement attached? YES 
Name of Property owner/Iessor and phone number: COLOJNAL PROPERTIES TRUST 205-876-4295 
What is lessors primary business? REAL ESTATE 
Is lessor involved in any way with the alcoholic beverage business? NO 
Is there any further interest, or connection with, the licensee's business by the lessor? NO 

Does the premise have a fully equipped kitchen? NO 
1s the business used to habitually and principally provide food to the public? NO 
Does the establishment have restroom facilities? YES 
Is the premise equipped with services and facilities for on premises consumption of alcoholic beverages? YES 

Will the business be operated primarily as a package store? NO 
Building Dimensions Square Footage: 99999 Display Square Footage: 
Building seating capacity: 99999 Does Licensed premises include a patio area? NO 
License Structure: SHOPPING CENTER License covers: OTHER 
Number of licenses in the vicinity: 5 Nearest: 1 
Nearest school: 3 blocks Nearest church: 1 miles Nearest residence: 2 blocks 
Location is within: ClTY LIMITS Police protection: ClTY 

Has any person(s) with any interest, including manager, whether as sole applicant, officer, member, or 
partner been charged (whether convicted or not) of any law violation(s)? 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD , 

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION 
Confirmation Number: 201 403071 0051 7349 

Initial each Signature page 
in reference to law violatfons. l attest a the tntfhfulness of the responses given within the app0caUm 

[!A 1 In reference to the Leaselproperty ownership, I attest to the truthfulness of the responses given within , *cd , ihe application. 
In reference to ACT No. 80-529, 1 undersland that if my application is denied or discontinued, I will not be 
refunded the filing fee required by this application. ru In reference to Special Retail or Speciai Events retail kenaa l agree to comply with all apflcable laws and 

regulations concerning this dass of license, and to observe the special terms and conditions as indicated , j, within Yr application, 

in reference lo the Club Appllcation information, I attest to the truthfulness of the responses given , , within the application. 

In reference to the transfer of license/location, I attest to the truthfulness of the information listed on the 
attached transfer agreement. 
In accordance with Alabama Rules LI Regulations 204-5-.01(4). any social security number disclosed 

under this regulation shall be used for the purpose of investigation or verifiition by the ABC Board 
and shall not be a matter of public record. 
The undemlgned agree, if a license Is issued as herein applled for, to comply at all times with and to fully 
observe all the provisions d the Alabama Aicohoilc Beverage Conlrol Act, as appears in Code of Alabama, 
Title 28, and ail laws of the State of Alabama relative to the handling of alcoholic beverages. 
The underslgned, if issued a ticense as herein requested, further agrees to obey all rufes and regulations 
promulgated by the board relative to all alcohollc beverages received in thls State. The underslgned, 
if issued a license as herein requested, also agrees to allow and hereby Invites duly authorized agents of 
the ~labama Alcoholic Beverage C m h l  Board and any duly commissioned law enforcement oHicer of 
the State. County or Munlcipallty In which the license premises are located to enter and search without 
a warrant the licensed premlses or any building owned or occupled by him or her In connection with 
said licensed pmises. The undersigned hereby understands that he or she violate any provisions of thP 
aforementbned laws his or her license shall be subject to revocation and no license can be again issued 
to said flcensee for a period of one year. The underslgned further understands and agrees that no changes 
in the manner of operation and no deletlon w discontinuance of any services or facilities as described in thls 
applicalion All be allowed without written approval of the proper governing body and the Alabama 
Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. 

i hereby swear and affirm that I have read the application and all statements therein and facts set forth are true 
and correct, and that the appicant is the only person interested in the business for which Ule license 
is required. 

Applicant Name (print): 
A\\cnc ?~rnc11  ~ ~ ' L D v s  

Nota, 

Notary Signature: Commission expires: 

Fonvarded to District Office: 3- 7- ld 
Submitted to Local ~overnment:z*7-)c) Received from Local Government: 
Received in District Office: ~ e i i e ~ ; e d  by Supcrvisoc 

3.1-44 
Fonvarded to CentmI Office: 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL BOARD ' 

ALCOHOL LICENSE APPLICATION 
Confirmation Number: 201403071 00517349 

Private Clubs / Special RetaiI / or Special Events licenses ONLY 

Private Club 
Does the club charge and collect dues from elected members? 
Number of paid up members: 
Are meetings regularly held? 
Wow often? 
Is business conducted through ofticers regularly elected? 
Are members admitted by written application, investigation, and ballot? 
Has Agent verified membership applications for each member listed? 
Has at least 10% of members listed been confirmed and highlighted? 
For what purpose is the club organized? 
Does the property used, as well as the advantages, belong to all the members? 
Do the operations of the club benefit any individual member(s), officer(s), director(s), agent(s), or 
employee(s) of the club rather than to benefit of the entire membership? 

Agent's Initials: 

Special Retail 
Is it for 30 days or less? 
More than 30 days? 

Franchisee or Concessionaire of above? 
Other valid responsible organization: 
Explanation: 

Special Events 1 Special RetaiI (7 days or less) 
Starting Date: Ending Date: 
Special terms and conditions for special eventlspecial retail: 

Other Explanations 
What is the applicant(s) primary source of funding?: CHARITBLE DONATIONS 
License Covers: OUTDOOR PARKING LOT 
Are there any special restrictions, instructions, andlor conditions for this license?: 
ONE DAY OUTDOOR EVENT TO RAISE FUNDS FOR A CHARITABLE 
FOUNDATION IN THE PARKING LOT OF 780 BROOKWOOD VILLAGE, MACY'S 
UPPER PARKING LOT, MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL ON APRIL 26TH, 2014. NO TO GO 
SALES PERMITTED. 



. Alcohol License AppIication Page 1 of 1 

Marn Menu 

Application Payment Receipt Confirmation Page 

Receipt Confirmation Number: 20140307100517349 
Application Payment Confirmation Number: 99999 

Application Information 

Payment Summary 

Application Type: APPLICATION 

L i~mse Type 1: 240 - NON-PROFIT TAX EXEMPT 

Payment Item 
Appticalion Fer for Lkense 240 

Total Amount to be Charged 

-- 

Technlsal Support: 866.353.3468 or 

Fee 
10.00 

50.00 

Version 2.0.3 



Receipt Confirmation Page 

Application Type 

Applicant lnfonnatlon 

Recelpt Confirmation Number: 201 403071 00517349 
Application Payment Confinnation Number: 99999 

Payment Summary 
Payment Itmm 
Application Fee for License 240 

I Total Amount to be Charged 

License Payment Confirmation Number: 99999 
1 Payment Summary 
!Payment Amm County Fee S M a  FM 
240 - NON-PROFIT IPT $0.00 90.00 _ TAX EXEh 

I r I 

L TotPl Amount (o br ~hargadl $0.00 1 $o.ml ~ 0 . ~ 1  

Applicatkrn Type: APPLICATION 

Llcense Type 1: 240 - NON-PROFIT TAX EXEMPT 
License Type 2: 
License County: JEFFERSON 
Business Type: CORPORAf (ON 

Trade Name; 2014 FOOD TRUCK ROUND UP 
Applicant Name: PRESCHOOL PARTNERS FOUNDATION 

Location Addrear PARKING LOT OF 7 8 0  BROOKWOOD VILLAGE 
MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35209  

Mailins Address: 3637 MONTROSE RD 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35213 

Contact Penon: ALLENE NEIGHBORS 
Conlact Home Phone: 205-936-3754 

Contact Budness Phom 205-951 -51 51 
Contact Fax: 205-95 1-51 3 1 

Contact Cell Phone: 205-936-3754 
Contact Email Address: 
Contact Web Address: 



ORDINANCE NO. 1902 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 129-431 OF TRE CITY CODE 
MODIFYING NOTICING AND PUBLICATION PROVISIONS 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that Section 129-43 1 of the City Code is hereby amended as follows: 

1. "Section 129--431. " Amendments in General. The number and boundaries of, and the 
regulations relating to, the districts established by this chapter may be amended, supplemented, or 
repealed by the city council, but no such amendment, supplement or repeal shall become effective unless 
it is first submitted to the planning commission for its recommendation. The planning commission shall 
hold a public hearing for the consideration of any such proposed amendment, supplement or repeal, after 
giving at least ten days' notice thereof, by posting notice of such hearing in four conspicuous places 
within the city, or by any other means permitted by applicable law, and shall, after the consideration of 
such amendment, supplement or repeal at the public hearing, forward its recommendation to the city 
council. The city council shall hold a public hearing for the consideration of such proposed amendment, . . . .  . supplement or repeal, 1 

a .  after 
giving notice of such public hearing in accordance with applicable law. Written notice of public 
hearings held by the planning commission and by the city council shall be sent, by United States certified 
mail or registered mail, to all property owners, any portion of whose property lies within 500 feet of any 
portion of tlie parcel included in a request for rezoning. For the purpose of such notice, the owner of a 
parcel shall be considered to be the person who is shown as the owner of such parcel according to tlie 
records of the tax assessor of Jefferson County, Alabama. If a public hearing is continued or postponed 
during the meeting of the planning commission or city council during which such hearing was held or was 
scheduled to have been held, no notice of such continued or postponed hearing need be given." 

2. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby 
expressly repealed. 

3. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 
or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder of this 
ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 
publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED: This 10th day of March, 2014. 

Council President 



APPROVIED: This 10th day of March, 20 14. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on March 10,2014, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on March 1 1,2014, at the following public places, 
which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
The Invitation Place, 3 150 Overton Road 

City Clerk 


	Meeting Agenda
	2. Feb 24 Minutes
	3. Reappoint Turner Williams 
	4. Reappoint Pete Johnson
	5. Disiposal of Surplus Property
	6. Sain Assoc Services Agreement
	7. Street Striping Contract
	8. Street Cut Patches Contract
	9. Tower Site Lease/Crown Castle
	10. Tower Site Lease/STC Five
	11. Preschool Partners Fundraising Event
	12. Zoning Code Ordinance



